# **Biomedical Physics**

# **Exploring X-Rays, Laser Applications, and Nanomedicine** in Life Sciences

#### Editors

#### **Amina Hussein Ghanim**

Department of Biophysics, College of Science, University of Mosul, Iraq

### Khalid Abdulsattar Abdullah Sultan

Department of Biophysics, College of Science, University of Mosul, Iraq

#### Reem Raid Ghanm

Department of Biophysics, Collage of Science, University of Mosul, Iraq

#### Sabrin Rashid Abd Alhussein

Department of Medical Physics, University of Hilla, Iraq

#### Tuqa Adnan Abdel Nabi

Department of Medical Physics, Al-Hilla University College, Iraq

Bright Sky Publications TM New Delhi Published By: Bright Sky Publications

Bright Sky Publication Office No. 3, 1st Floor, Pocket - H34, SEC-3, Rohini, Delhi, 110085, India

Editors: Amina Hussein Ghanim, Khalid Abdulsattar Abdullah Sultan, Reem Raid Ghanm, Sabrin Rashid Abd Alhussein and Tuqa Adnan Abdel Nabi

The author/publisher has attempted to trace and acknowledge the materials reproduced in this publication and apologize if permission and acknowledgements to publish in this form have not been given. If any material has not been acknowledged please write and let us know so that we may rectify it.

## © Bright Sky Publications

Edition: 1st

Publication Year: 2025

**Pages:** 100

Paperback ISBN: 978-93-6233-208-0

**E-Book ISBN:** 978-93-6233-087-1

**DOI:** https://doi.org/10.62906/bs.book.419

Price: ₹461/-

# **Contents**

S. No.	Chapters	Page Nos.
	Abstract	01
1.	Introduction to Biomedical Physics	02-03
2.	Fundamentals of X-Ray Physics	04-12
3.	Applications of X-Rays in Medicine	13-19
4.	Laser Physics in Biomedical Applications	20-27
5.	Clinical Uses of Lasers	28-36
6.	Nanomedicine: An Overview	37-42
7.	Nanomaterials and Their Biomedical Applications	43-49
8.	Regulatory and Ethical Considerations	50-54
9.	Future Directions in Biomedical Physics	55-60
10.	Conclusion	61
	References	62-100

#### **Abstract**

In recent decades, life sciences research profoundly evolved through the application of a wide range of traditionally (bio)physical methods and techniques used to obtain new biophysical insights into the interactions of biologically important molecules and supramolecular assembled structures, which are themselves important for fundamental life processes and function, as well as for their bioapplications, especially in nanomedicine. The advances were made possible through the continuous downscaling of the (bio)physical techniques and developments of experimental and instrumental modes for multidimensional access to complementary information (timeensemble-based. single-molecule). resolved. and Understanding biomolecular mechanisms underlying life processes is presently a huge challenge, and this requires multidisciplinary approaches, for example, both experimental and theory-computational areas, in order to combine methods of different specificity and time resolution. In addition, the increasing diversity of molecular effector candidates in biomedicine is asking for the development of reliable pre-screening approaches. The discoveries of new nanoprobes and new measurement principles in biophysics offered to further broaden the arsenal of (bio)sensors on the nanoscale. High (spatial) resolution, small interfering volumes, a combination of local probes and farfield detection modes, as well as multi-modality offer exciting prospects for massively parallel multiplexed detection on the nanoscale and with limited labelling.

Within a continuum of temporal and spatial resolutions, techniques span dimensions ranging from molecular to (macroscale) imaging. Some techniques are particularly well suited for low-temporal to nanosecond timescales, yet other techniques explorer shorter timescale with limited spatial resolution. Also, the available instruments comprise important variety: They can be "one talking to many" as well as "many talking to one." As a result, each investigator is often dealing with their own custom instrumentation; the hope is that this will create a community willing to exchange insights across disciplines. It is important to draw connections between this diverse community of scientists working in the area of "biological science" from different angles.

# Chapter - 1

# **Introduction to Biomedical Physics**

Life science research fields prominently require the active, enthusiastic, and engaged involvement of exceptionally skilled physicists and other interdisciplinary experts to effectively address and tackle a myriad of challenging and intricate biomedical problems. These problems are intricately linked to the health and disease of various organisms, the fascinating phenomena of life in all its diversity, and the profound, thought-provoking origins of life itself that have puzzled and intrigued scientists for generations upon generations. The significant biomedical problems being discussed in this vital research context concern the following three crucial, interconnected areas of life science research that are undeniably at the forefront of scientific inquiry today:

- The ongoing and relentless quest for a highly effective COVID-19
  vaccine that specifically targets the receptor-binding domain of the
  spike protein of the notorious and widely impactful SARS-CoV-2
  virus. This virus has caused a global pandemic that has severely
  challenged health systems and societies alike, forcing scientists and
  researchers to innovate at an unprecedented pace;
- 2) Gaining a substantially deeper and more comprehensive understanding of the neo-plasmatic cell proliferation that is intriguingly triggered by groundbreaking and innovative laser biostimulation techniques, which utilize the intricate and complex optical response function of a mammalian cell. This research could provide priceless insights that might revolutionize regenerative medicine and advance cancer therapies significantly; and
- 3) Engaging in an extensive and detailed investigation into the nanoscale and intricate interplay between serotonin and F-actin filaments in the complex and dynamic sensorineural signaling of hippocampal neurons. This intricate interplay is fundamental for numerous essential cognitive functions and biological processes that underlie and support various aspects of life and health.

Consequently, this exploration is shedding light on potential treatments for neurological disorders while enhancing our understanding of memory and learning processes themselves. This expansive exploration and comprehensive assessment underscore the vital importance of interdisciplinary collaboration and teamwork in resolving pressing health issues while simultaneously advancing our understanding of biological mechanisms on a fundamental level, fostering innovation and discovery as we navigate the uncharted territories of life sciences [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10].

Researchers from various parts of the globe are tirelessly seeking a viable and effective COVID-19 vaccine that can help combat the pandemic that has affected millions. The Receptor-Binding Domain (RBD) of the Spike Protein (SP) found on the surface of the SARS-CoV-2 virus has emerged as a particularly significant target in the ongoing vaccine development efforts. Consequently, to ensure the development of the most effective and potent vaccine possible, a comprehensive understanding of the underlying mechanism involved in the binding process between the RBD and ACE2 is deemed essential. In this extensive study, by utilizing highquality atomic coordinates derived from advanced and sophisticated techniques, a series of detailed structural representations that vividly illustrate the intricate interaction between the RBD and ACE2 are meticulously reconstructed for the SARS-CoV-2 virus, employing the steepest descent method for optimization processes. The atomic contacts that contribute to the binding energy in this vital interaction are carefully assessed and thoroughly determined to understand their significance. The results obtained from this rigorous analysis reveal that, irrespective of the bound state of the proteins involved, a distinctive area that closely resembles a cleft at the interface of RBD and ACE2 remains consistently shielded from to surrounding water molecules. Furthermore, simulations, which involve increased degrees of freedom, are shown to effectively drive the evolutionary process of the unbound system towards the formation of a stable RBD: ACE2 complex, which is crucial for successful binding. These significant findings have the potential to provide critical insights and shed much-needed light on the overall efficacy of the vaccine being developed, offering hope for a successful resolution to the ongoing global crisis [11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17].

# Chapter - 2

# **Fundamentals of X-Ray Physics**

A distinctive and exceptionally notable feature of X-rays is that they possess a relatively high energy level when compared to other forms of electromagnetic radiation, which include radio waves and microwaves. This intrinsic and remarkable characteristic allows X-rays to penetrate opaque materials that do not permit the passage of ultraviolet light, visible light, or infrared light through them. This extraordinary and unique capability makes X-rays particularly valuable, significant, and indispensable across a wide variety of fields and applications. The use of X-rays extends far beyond merely medical diagnosis and imaging; they also play a crucial and essential role in therapy, as well as in the spectral analysis of various chemical elements. Various sources of X-rays are utilized in an impressively diverse array of applications, including traditional X-ray tubes that have been in widespread use for many years, advanced synchrotron radiation facilities that provide greater intensity and precision, and newer, more compact sources that are currently emerging from recent advancements in technology. The development and implementation of X-ray detectors, in conjunction with these X-ray sources, are fundamentally and critically important for all applications that involve X-rays, as they serve to extract useful, vital, and pertinent information from the emitted X-rays. The processes of detection, analysis, and interpretation of X-rays, coupled with their numerous and varied applications, have collectively made a significant and groundbreaking contribution to advancing knowledge and understanding in the realms of human health and medicine, as well as in both research and industrial sectors. Furthermore, the ongoing exploration of X-ray technology continues to open new avenues for innovation and improvement, enhancing our grasp of complex materials and contributing to advancements in countless fields [18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24]

Medical X-ray imaging stands out not only as an essential tool in modern medicine but also as a remarkably powerful instrument that significantly aids in advancing the comprehensive exploration of human anatomy while facilitating an in-depth understanding of numerous diseases in a noninvasive manner. The vast applications of medical X-ray imaging encompass several techniques, including but not limited to radiography, fluoroscopy, and Computed Tomography (CT), with each technique serving distinct and specialized purposes in the field of diagnostics. Furthermore, more advanced and innovative imaging systems, such as X-ray phasecontrast imaging, photoacoustic imaging, and multi-modality imaging, have been meticulously developed and refined over time in order to greatly enhance imaging resolution and to significantly broaden the diagnostic capabilities of contemporary X-ray imaging systems. Additionally, an impressive array of studies focused on binuclear metal complexes has been performed using cutting-edge synchrotron radiation-based techniques, showcasing the versatility of these advanced imaging technologies. Such studies have primarily concentrated on Bi(I)- and Bi(III)-containing compounds that exhibit promising antitumor activity; titanium-based and noble metal-based species that are emerging as potential candidates for innovative radio-theranostic applications; and Ru(II)-based compounds which are currently under active investigation as potential new anticancer agents in the ongoing quest for advancing methodologies and strategies in cancer treatment. Through these developments and ongoing research, medical X-ray imaging continues to play a pivotal role in the improvement of healthcare outcomes and the enhancement of methods used to tackle various challenging diseases [25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32].

Another vivid example of the remarkable application of innovative Xray techniques in the ever-evolving field of medicine utilizes the advanced method of X-ray Bragg scattering to effectively detect pre-malignant lesions of breast tissue, skin, and even the prostate gland with great accuracy. This advanced technique allows for early identification of potential health issues, which is crucial for timely intervention and treatment. Recent significant hardware developments have included the creation of advanced silicon-based 1D and 2D X-ray detectors that have been specifically tailored for a variety of applications within the medical sphere, enhancing diagnostic capabilities. Their commercialized versions now cover an extensive range of medical Xray imaging systems that are commonly employed in hospitals and clinics around the world, revolutionizing the way medical imaging is conducted. Notably, the hard X-ray micro-focusing 2D detectors have been skillfully developed, specifically designed for various 2D imaging applications, which provide unique advantages particularly in important fields such as biochemical studies and bioengineering applications. These advancements significantly make diagnosis and treatment more precise and efficient, allowing healthcare professionals to implement more targeted therapies. Additionally, user-friendly and compact systems of laboratory X-ray imaging systems are also readily available in the marketplace, catering to the increasing demand for accessible and effective imaging solutions that meet the needs of a diverse range of medical practices and research institutions [33, 34, 35, 36, 37]

# 2.1 History of x-ray discovery

The history of medical imaging has an extraordinary beginning that initiated with the groundbreaking discovery of X-rays. On the notable date of November 8, 1895, Wilhelm Conrad Röntgen undertook a sequence of experiments involving glass cathode ray tubes within the confines of his laboratory situated in Wuerzburg. To ensure adequate preventive shielding against the mysterious rays emanating from the tube, he prudently covered the entire apparatus with a layer of black cardboard. While inspecting the functionality of the tube, he made a remarkable observation: a piece of paper that had been meticulously coated with barium platinocyanide, positioned at a specific distance of approximately 1.5–2 meters, began to glow vibrantly in his laboratory. These rays were remarkably invisible to the naked eye. From this intriguing phenomenon, he deduced that additional rays must have been emitted from the tube itself. He subsequently labeled these newly discovered rays as X-rays, with "X" symbolizing the unknown nature of these emissions.

Initially, Röntgen shared his findings with his laboratory assistants, showcasing the fascinating rays. However, he quickly realized that in order to deepen his understanding, it would be crucial to systematically repeat his experiments in a more varied and random manner. By strategically placing a variety of objects in front of the tube, he embarked on a journey of rigorous experimentation. His inaugural experiment involved positioning a book, wax material, and a metal object before the tube. The outcome of this initial experiment was nothing short of astonishing: the metal savers clearly produced an image visible on the screen. For his subsequent experiment, he decided to place his wife's hand in front of the tube. As she gazed at the screen, she remarked with surprise, "I see my myese in the life, more than this, I see the bone." This day marked a significant milestone, as he effectively rendered the bones of his wife invisible in a remarkable radiographic image.

This photograph stands as the very first published radiographic image in the history of medical imaging. However, during this groundbreaking process, the artificial nail of the tube became damaged, necessitating the reconstruction of the camera. The hand was carefully repositioned in front of the tube, aligned precisely as it had been before. The same process, involving a wait in the cupboard, was repeated, yet this time, one of the bone contours on the display appeared almost imperceptible. In an attempt to understand this anomaly, he speculated that perhaps the screen itself was somehow compromised. During this incredibly inventive era, Weissdorf successfully immortalized these pivotal first hours of discovery, ensuring that the tale continues to be shared even in the present day. A plethora of other books about half a dozen, in fact have been authored on this compelling and transformative topic, reflecting the profound impact of Röntgen's groundbreaking work on the field of medical imaging and beyond [38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43]

The astonishing and remarkable discovery spread rapidly across various regions of the world in an impressively short period of time. The French scientific community made a momentous announcement about this groundbreaking new invention, which drew significant and widespread attention due to its uncanny and astonishing features that captivated and fascinated the imagination of countless individuals. Following Röntgen's early and influential publication, the news of his important findings spread consciously to numerous corners of the globe in an impressively brief time frame and with great urgency. By the end of January in the year 1896, it was already widely known and acknowledged in several major cities across multiple continents, showcasing its vast impact. Two pivotal and highly groundbreaking studies were subsequently published in esteemed and prestigious public journals, which highlighted the critical importance of the discovery. The first of these significant studies was authored by the notable H. Stinson, with several of its priorities and findings being notably emphasized and discussed in the scientific community. The second groundbreaking work belonged to the highly renowned French radiologist R. D. T. Becquerel, who made major and significant contributions to the field as well, further solidifying the importance of this momentous discovery [44, 45, 46, 47, 42, 48, 49]

# 2.2 X-ray production mechanisms

An X-ray is a fascinating type of electromagnetic wave characterized by its remarkably short wavelength, which ranges from 0.01 nanometers (nm) to as much as 10 nm. The various mechanisms that contribute to the production of X-rays can be effectively categorized into two primary groups: one being the continuous X-ray generation mechanisms, often specifically referred to as Bremsstrahlung, and the other being the characteristic X-ray generation

mechanisms, which involve specific and intricate interactions that occur within atoms. Many different materials are utilized for X-ray sources, including commonly used conversion materials such as molybdenum (Mo), tungsten (W), and rhenium (Re). These materials play a crucial role in determining the quality and effectiveness of the X-rays produced. It can be conclusively noted from comprehensive experimental data that the performance level of a molybdenum anode source exhibits a significantly higher output power when compared to that of a traditional 500 W tungsten and rhenium anode source. This finding is important as it highlights the advantages of using certain materials in X-ray generation. Furthermore, the radiation emitted by X-rays that occurs in a target can be divided into two distinct, non-overlapping regions that are critical for understanding X-ray behavior: the steadily growing region, which lasts from 1 to 4 microseconds (µs), and the saturated region, which persists and extends beyond 4 µs. In the steadily growing region, the output intensity of the X-rays can be quantitatively expressed in relation to the power of the radiation source itself. On the other hand, in the saturated region, the output intensity remains largely unaffected by the radiation source's power; instead, it is highly correlated and dependent on the significantly elevated temperature that is experienced by the target during the interaction [50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56].

A significant and pressing concern in the complex field of fission munitions revolves around how these formidable weapons respond intricately to X-ray radiation. This particular radiation, known as X-ray radiation, is produced specifically by the interaction of high-energy electrons with various materials of differing compositions. X-rays can be classified into two distinct categories: low-energy soft X-rays, which possess energies less than 1.5 keV and generally have less penetrating power, and highenergy hard X-rays, which carry energies exceeding 1.5 keV and can penetrate materials more effectively. The mechanism behind X-ray production encompasses a detailed sequence of three essential processes: initially, the X-ray source generates a flowing beam of high-energy electrons. These high-energy electrons can be produced through natural phenomena such as Lightning strikes and atmospheric discharges or via the implosion mechanisms associated with the operation of fission munitions. The response of various fission munitions to bremsstrahlung radiation, a specific type of X-ray radiation that arises from the interaction of fastmoving electrons with materials, is thoroughly analyzed in numerous studies devoted to this critical area of research. The successful detection and measurement of an X-ray yield were achieved in a variety of controlled experiments. Consequently, the effects and impacts of X-rays on various fission munitions can be comprehensively characterized through a series of extensive analyses. Gaseous X-ray sources, in particular, present a monochromatic energy spectrum that is crucial for the execution of an array of precise measurements. Their availability and adaptability to a broad spectrum of experimental applications make them necessary for effective discrimination in research and development. The results obtained regarding the feasibility of fully characterizing these gaseous X-ray sources include detailed calculations on the resultant angular distribution, the energy spectrum, and the time dependence of the X-ray output over different conditions. These findings highlight the complexities and challenges involved in fully understanding the intricate interaction between X-ray radiation and fission munitions, necessitating further research to utilize this knowledge in practical applications [57, 58, 59, 60, 50, 61, 62, 63].

# 2.3 X-ray interaction with matter

Each modality of imaging possesses its own distinct and unique advantages alongside the challenges that researchers must effectively navigate to achieve optimal outcomes and results. In particular, X-ray-based techniques can offer numerous unique possibilities that significantly facilitate the comprehensive study of bio-nano interactions across a plethora of various length scales, which can profoundly deepen our understanding of these intricate and complex processes that are central to modern science and technology. Unlike conventional imaging techniques that may be limited in scope, X-ray methods stand out distinctly due to their remarkable ability to produce large-field-of-view images while maintaining extraordinarily high resolution, often extending down to the level of individual nanoparticles, or even to the atomic scale itself, which opens up new avenues for researchers in multiple scientific disciplines. Simultaneously, these advanced methods enable the detection of a large number of elements simultaneously, which represents a significant advantage in numerous scientific applications across different fields and industries. Furthermore, X-rays possess the exceptional capability to penetrate deeply into complex biological systems with very minimal attenuation, thus rendering them exceptionally promising for in vivo applications that require detailed and nuanced insights into intricate biological processes, especially in situations where non-invasive techniques are crucial. However, it is absolutely crucial to thoroughly address the pressing questions concerning the potential effects and implications of Xrays as a radiation source, particularly in the context of potential risks and their responses in heterogeneous biological systems, which could significantly impact live biological entities and the health of experimental subjects. This article provides a comprehensive and insightful overview of various imaging and spectroscopic techniques that are firmly grounded in the fundamental principles of X-ray interactions with biological samples. These methodologies are particularly valuable for studying drug-loaded nanoparticles and nanoparticle carriers that are applied to biological systems, especially in an *in vivo* context, where a deep understanding of the behavior, distribution, and interaction of these materials is vital for advancing medical research and clinical applications, ultimately paving the way for innovative therapeutic strategies and improved patient outcomes [33, 64, 65, 50, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70].

There exist a multitude of advanced imaging techniques that can be categorized broadly into Two-Dimensional (2D) and three-dimensional (3D) methodologies. Both of these methodologies utilize the fundamental principles associated with X-ray absorption, encompassing both soft X-rays and hard X-rays. The remarkable effectiveness of these imaging techniques is underscored by a fundamental property: water and soft biological tissues exhibit relatively low levels of attenuation when exposed to hard X-ray energies. Consequently, these imaging techniques find considerable utility across a diverse range of applications, encompassing various disciplines such as medical diagnostics, materials science, and biological research.

Every X-ray imaging system that effectively utilizes surface detection methods to capture the attenuated X-ray beams generates a projection image of the object under observation. In this projection image, the intensity that is projected is not arbitrary; rather, it is directly influenced by the local X-ray attenuation characteristics of the object being examined. When energy-selective detection methodologies are implemented, they offer additional valuable information that is specific to certain elements or their oxidation states. This capability enables the possibility of conducting intricate spectroscopic imaging across diverse dimensional planes, whether that be two or three dimensions, meticulously analyzing both spatial coordinates and energy levels. This detailed analysis is often referred to in scientific circles as chemical speciation, allowing for enhanced understanding of the material properties.

The recent advancements and enhancements made in synchrotron beamlines have garnered significant attention, creating a wealth of new and exciting opportunities for both the development of innovative imaging techniques and the thorough investigation of a variety of different sample types. However, while these significant enhancements in technology present promising avenues for exploration, they also come with a formidable challenge. This challenge necessitates substantial efforts to revamp and

refine existing techniques, which is essential for effectively managing the large volumes of data that are generated during the imaging process. In this context, the progress in developing new benchtop imaging methods is anticipated to be critically vital for successfully leveraging and implementing the advancing capabilities of X-ray-based sensors. These sensors are currently undergoing vigorous development for a multitude of applications spanning across diverse fields, which dramatically highlights their growing importance and potential impact on both research and practical applications in our understanding and interaction with various materials and biological systems [71, 65, 57, 72, 73, 74, 75, 67].

Initially developed to significantly enhance the inclusion of a tissuemimicking background, these highly advanced X-ray imaging techniques possess an extraordinary capability to cover expansive depth ranges, while concurrently providing extraordinarily high detection sensitivities that unequivocally surpass traditional methods. With elevated imaging resolutions that can reach an impressive 250 nm or even better, intricate and complex contrast mechanisms are now being employed in innovative ways to achieve unprecedented results. Among these innovative methods is the employment of poly(ethylene glycol) and polyvinyl alcohol, specifically utilized for purposes of laser-induced heating, along with the clever utilization of hollow glass shells, which are frequently referred to as microballoons. These microballoons effectively serve as X-ray opaque elements within the overall imaging setup, contributing significantly to the imaging process. A key area of focused research and development is centered around the embedment of highly absorbing X-ray labels into a sophisticated polymeric biocompatible matrix comprising methacrylic acid and 2-hydroxyethyl methacrylate. This advanced combination of materials can greatly enhance the quality of the resulting imaging outcomes. This particular strategy represents a truly progressive and novel approach that warrants the concentrated attention of researchers and practitioners alike in the relevant field. When considering the diverse and numerous applications of X-rays in the meticulous examination of biomedical samples, methods that are based on diffusion-driven self-organization to produce intricate and fine structures with diameters exceeding 1 µm can prove to be exceptionally useful and beneficial. Such advanced techniques hold the potential to lead to the creation of performant yet low-cost devices that are not only scalable for production but are also eminently capable of generating a multitude of sources for various applications. This is essential in fulfilling multiple needs within the ever-evolving landscape of biomedical engineering and imaging technology. Through continued exploration and development in this field, future advances may significantly improve the effectiveness and accessibility of X-ray technologies in diverse medical settings  $^{[50, 65, 76, 77, 78, 68, 79]}$ .

# Chapter - 3

# **Applications of X-Rays in Medicine**

Biomedical physics is primarily directed toward the research, development, and acquisition of innovative medical devices that address the needs of modern healthcare, specifically focusing on harnessing and understanding the inherent biological effects produced by the laser. These specialized devices meticulously study the complex interactions that occur between lasers and various biological tissues, with the ultimate aim of enhancing medical outcomes and facilitating improved healthcare practices. Biomedical engineering, which integrates a diverse array of disciplines such as medicine, design, applied physics, electronics, computing, optics, and materials science, plays a critical and foundational role in the rapidly evolving field of biophotonics. Its fundamental applications span across a multitude of crucial medical interventions, including laser surgery procedures, and sophisticated treatment systems intricately designed for addressing stones located in the liver, gall bladder, or kidney. Additionally, it encompasses applications that extend to the reverse engineering of bones or cartilage, as interpreted through conventional X-ray imaging techniques, showcasing the versatility and significance of this discipline.

The comprehensive scope of biomedical physics instrumentation involves the intricate design and meticulous assembly of an array of components such as lasers, couplers, collectors, and filters, specifically tailored for various imaging modalities that include retinal, skin, surface, or colon imaging. There is also a significant and ongoing effort toward the enhancement and modification of endoscopes, equipped with advanced imaging optics intended to improve diagnostic accuracy and elevate the standards for patient care. Notably, medical lasers may be classified into several distinct types, such as metal vapor, carbon dioxide, neodymium, YAG, or dye lasers, which can be afocal or adjustable according to their designated application needs. The applications utilizing these diverse laser types are predominantly found in treating a range of conditions related to diabetic and premature retinopathy, as well as in various fields such as urology, pathology, cosmetology, and importantly, the emerging area of photodynamic therapy. This multidimensional approach

significantly advances the technology utilized in medical procedures but also profoundly enhances patient care through improved treatment efficacy, accuracy, and precision, ultimately fostering better health outcomes for individuals in need [80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88].

Nanomedicine is an innovative field that directly applies the principles of nanotechnology within the domain of medicine. It focuses on anticipating and addressing the considerable challenges presented by the integration of nanosized drug delivery systems into medical practices. This specialized approach takes into full consideration the intricate physicochemical properties that characterize the nano-drugs being utilized in various treatments. Over the years, a diverse array of advanced systems has been developed, which include nonmetallic, metallic, and hybrid drug delivery methodologies. These systems are engineered to specifically target tumor cells with remarkable efficiency, thereby enhancing treatment outcomes.

The significance of ensuring biocompatibility in these cutting-edge nanotechnology systems has been thoroughly addressed in numerous studies, highlighting the crucial nature of collaboration among nanoscientists, oncologists, and physicians within the realms of cancer diagnosis and treatment protocols. Such interdisciplinary cooperation is essential for forging new pathways in effective therapy methods. Furthermore, the design of novel fluorescent dyes, specifically intended for studying complex biological processes, stands as an important component of bioimaging and bioanalytical systems. This particular application of nanotechnology serves a fundamental role in the expansive field of biomedicine, which is not only vital for advancing cancer treatment but also for a broad spectrum of other medical applications that are crucial to unraveling and understanding fundamental life processes.

In addition, various types of nanocarriers are currently being employed to dissolve poorly soluble drugs with high efficiency. These carriers utilize advanced materials such as polymeric micelles, mesoporous silica particles, liposomes, and both organic and inorganic nanoparticles. They play a significant role in enabling targeted drug delivery, which in turn effectively treats localized diseases and enhances diagnostic imaging for improved patient outcomes. For instance, they are designed to increase MRI contrast, making it easier for clinicians to identify problematic areas. Moreover, there has been a growing interest in the development of novel nanomaterials aimed at creating highly sensitive diagnostic assay systems. These systems utilize latently enhanced fluorescence, thereby facilitating more accurate and reliable results.

This recent surge in interest in nanomaterials can be attributed, in part, to groundbreaking technologies that have emerged in recent years. Examples of such innovative technologies include quantum dots made from semiconductor nanocrystals, plasmonic nano-resonators based on metal nanoparticles, and ceramic or polymeric up-converting nanocrystals. Each of these developments has played a pivotal role in driving significant innovations within the expansive landscapes of nanomedicine and biotechnology, opening up new frontiers for future research and therapeutic strategies. The ongoing exploration and application of these advanced nanotechnology principles promise to shape the next generation of medical solutions, revolutionizing how diseases are diagnosed and treated [33, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96]

## 3.1 Diagnostic imaging techniques

Recent advances in various imaging technologies have enabled an impressive array of observations to be made noninvasively through solid bodies, unlocking a plethora of new possibilities for scientific exploration and inquiry. This significant breakthrough in the ability to access crucial and often previously inaccessible information has marked a transformative milestone within the fields of disease diagnosis and biological studies, leading to enhanced precision and efficacy in these areas that are of paramount importance to health and science. The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries are constantly in search of novel and innovative tools to sense, identify, measure, and study various parameters related to biological activity and functionality, as well as to detect an extensive array of biological and therapeutic molecules, structures, and interactions across life sciences, diagnostic applications, environmental monitoring, and even the food industry.

In recent years, the remarkable development of new biomaterials has contributed significantly to the advancement of medical imaging technology and its associated techniques, which are continually evolving to expand their wide-ranging applications in various fields of research and healthcare. Additionally, the field of nanotechnology, which is defined as the precise control of matter at the atomic, molecular, or macromolecular scale, plays a crucial role in facilitating the recognition, detection, and measurement of biomolecules at levels of sensitivity and specificity that are much lower than what conventional methods can achieve. This strategic advantage offers not only increased sensitivity of detection but also high selectivity for specific targets, resulting in an enhanced ability to detect functional aspects of biomolecules. Moreover, it opens the door to the potential for a seamless

combination of both therapeutic and diagnostic functions, effectively creating a new paradigm in medical science.

Consequently, by synergistically combining the principles and innovations of nanotechnology with advanced imaging technology, molecular imaging is rapidly emerging as a pivotal enabling technology within the dynamic realm of biomedicine. This integration effectively visualizes complex molecular and cellular processes occurring in living organisms under direct observation, equipped with a broad range of spatial and temporal resolutions to suit varied research needs. Such cutting-edge capabilities allow for a more profound and detailed understanding of diseases and pathological conditions, significantly enhancing the drug development process and paving the way for innovative solutions and therapies in healthcare and medical research. As these technologies continue to evolve and converge, the potential for groundbreaking advancements in patient outcomes and therapeutic efficacy becomes a tangible reality, promising exciting developments for the future [97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105].

Imaging modalities encompass a notably diverse range of advanced techniques that include both nuclear and nonnuclear imaging methods, each playing a crucial role in modern diagnostics and research. Among the prominent nuclear imaging modalities are Positron Emission Tomography (PET) and Single-Photon Emission Computed Tomography (SPECT), which are extensively utilized in both clinical settings and various research applications. Their capacity to visualize metabolic processes in real-time has revolutionized our understanding of numerous diseases. On the other hand, the nonnuclear modalities incorporate Optical Imaging (OI) and X-ray Computed Tomography (CT), each boasting its own unique applications, strengths, and advantages in providing detailed anatomical and functional information. Certain imaging techniques necessitate the utilization of specific probes to produce a readily detectable signal, where the intensity of this signal is directly proportional to the concentration and/or the physicalchemical characteristics of the emitting probe utilized during the imaging process. In contrast, other sophisticated imaging techniques such as X-ray CT depend primarily on the absorption of energy, which varies in a predictable manner based on the intrinsic properties of the substructures within the observed object. This fundamental principle ultimately aids in the formation of detailed images that clinicians can interpret. The scenario in Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) is quite different from these modalities; in the realm of MRI, objects that exhibit very distinct physical characteristics can, in some cases, yield no signal at all. This particular attribute allows for the creation of multiple image contrasts that can significantly enhance diagnostic capabilities, providing invaluable insights into tissue composition and pathology. This contribution aims to present a thorough and comprehensive review of the origins of the image signal and the intricate mechanisms of contrast generation specifically in MRI. This includes a fundamental introduction to relaxometry as well as an in-depth discussion of the various MRI contrast agents that are currently available for clinical and research applications, shedding light on their roles and effectiveness in imaging protocols [106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114].

### 3.2 Therapeutic applications

Therapeutic applications of lasers and X-rays have been significantly and extensively investigated for a diverse array of essential biomedical purposes across multiple specialized fields. On one hand, the innovative applications of lasers typically take full advantage of a range of various photothermal and photochemical processes, which can effectively locally modulate the various functions of biological samples or be employed for selectively sensitizing disease-related and harmful species present in the affected tissues. This selectivity is critically important for ensuring that healthy tissues are spared while targeting various malignancies or infectious agents efficiently. On the other hand, applications of X-rays predominantly rely on a wide range of intrinsic or extrinsic contrast mechanisms, which are exceptionally well-suited for the provision of detailed chemical, Nano/micro, and even mechanical information pertaining to biological constructs with exceptional spatial resolution. The ability to obtain such comprehensive and detailed information makes X-ray imaging an invaluable and essential tool in modern medical diagnostics. In addition to the immense potential represented by laser and other radiation sources, there are nevertheless critical concerns regarding the contradictory safety implications for biological samples undergoing treatment. X-rays, recognized as the most effective type of radiation currently available in the treatment of diverse tumors, can lead to various types of injuries and damage to the tissues, which consequently limits their applicability for non-oncology biomedical purposes. The emerging phenomenon known as the abscopal effect observed in high-dose targeted X-ray treatment has raised new hope and excitement for advancing X-ray immunotherapy techniques, which could offer novel treatment strategies and approaches to managing diseases. Notably, X-Rayinduced secondary particles generated during the treatment process can help mitigate the potential irradiative damage to normal, surrounding tissues and also induce valuable and essential tumor immune activation. The ongoing

development of systems that integrate X-ray radiation with photodynamic therapy excitation sources has led to innovative and groundbreaking approaches for well-proven combination therapies. This serves as a significant motivation to inspire experts across various specialty areas in Xray applications to work collaboratively in building the necessary advanced nanotechnologies and to deepen our understanding of the mechanisms that underlie the various X-ray applications currently in practice. Regarding laser treatments of biological models whether these pertain to tissue modeling or disease modeling it is of utmost importance to design ergonomic experimental schemes that facilitate effective tissue loading and careful monitoring of parameters, as well as accurate temperature control and seamless delivery of subsequent workflows for laboratory responses and experimental outcomes. Furthermore, a broad variety of lasers has shown remarkable capability to probe different styles and depths of biological effects. This includes, for instance, femtosecond laser pulse-induced acute photoacoustic imaging, which serves to observe exosome-driven chronic effects and provides valuable insights into kidney injury while expanding depths and sizes available for infrared illumination. There is also significant potential for dual-color laser interaction to support highly efficient photothermal therapy outcomes characterized by ultrafast histological deformation and other observable changes. Following these comprehensive in vivo assays, advanced techniques such as cleared fluorescence imaging, detailed histology, and precision molecular detection can effectively assess and characterize the long-term therapeutic effects observed from these innovative treatments [33, 115, 65, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 122]

### 3.3 Radiation safety and protection

Radionuclide applications encompass a broad spectrum of uses that span various disciplines, notably including laboratory research, the biomedical field, agricultural practices, and additional domains tied to life science and health sciences. Within this expansive field, particles that possess a high energy of charge such as alpha, beta, neutron, and photon radiation are employed for a multitude of purposes and applications. Some prominent techniques that are widely utilized include Accelerator Mass Spectrometry, which is particularly valued in various research endeavors due to its precision and accuracy. In the realm of biomedical applications, many advanced techniques focus significantly on the detection of radioactive proteins, tissues, or fluids, primarily using highly effective beta and gamma bucket detection methods. It is also noteworthy that some of these practices fall under Safety Class 3 designation, thereby indicating that they are not

sources of ionizing radiation, which is crucial for certain applications. Nonetheless, the urgent need has arisen to establish a comprehensive and robust regulatory framework that clearly delineates nuclear safety protocols alongside the legal responsibilities tied to maintaining rigorous safety standards against ionizing radiation exposure. Furthermore, fostering a strong culture of safety and enhancing knowledge regarding the fundamental principles of nuclear safety is essential, particularly within the dynamic biomedical field. This effort aims to ensure that researchers and practitioners remain well-informed and compliant with the required safety measures, thus promoting a safer working environment for all involved in these critical applications [123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128, 129].

The application of very high magnetic fields in various biomagnetism applications has the potential to generate significant and notable biological effects that could be impactful to human health and well-being. In most cases, the danger level that can be associated with these innovative applications can be assessed as possessing a low-risk profile. Nevertheless, it is critical and essential to establish a comprehensive and clearly articulated regulatory framework that can effectively prevent the emergence of physical agents that may pose risks or be harmful to both workers, individuals, and the environment at large. Addressing these pressing safety concerns is of paramount importance, and it requires a thorough and multifaceted recognition of the issue at hand alongside the implementation of effective and appropriate strategies that are aimed at increasing public awareness while enhancing knowledge related to measures that effectively prevent potential hazards and risks. In the context of Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) and Nanoparticles (NP), it is essential to respond appropriately and decisively to the exigencies presented by these emerging applications and to actively promote robust education and training that is thoroughly focused on radiation protection and safety issues. Implementing well-thought-out measures to facilitate this should be prioritized as the very first essential step forward in this critical area. There exists a pressing and undeniable need to structure specialized training sessions that are appropriately tailored to accommodate different levels of understanding and expertise among diverse participants. A commendable and noteworthy precedent can be found in the ongoing dedicated efforts made to enhance radiation protection education and training across a wide variety of applications that involve ionizing radiation, which serves as a valuable model for future initiatives and programs in this arena [130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 137]

# Chapter - 4

# **Laser Physics in Biomedical Applications**

Biomedical applications of compact lasers are demonstrating a significant evolution for both pre-clinical and clinical diagnostics, as well as noninvasive treatments for critical health issues such as cancers and cardiovascular diseases. These developments have reached a substantial level of maturity and present numerous promising real-life applications that are paving the way toward commercialisation. Innovations in compact laserbased devices are ushering in a new era of biomedical technologies that advanced methods including photoacoustic encompass fluorescence spectroscopy, Raman spectroscopy, and laser-induced breakdown spectroscopy, all of which facilitate label-free identification of chemically and morphologically diverse biotissues. The pre-clinical applications of these compact lasers are increasingly gaining traction, particularly in the realm of non-invasive treatments targeting cardiovascular diseases. The burgeoning field of laser-induced techniques incorporating pigments and magnetic nanoparticles is anticipated to flourish, presenting exciting opportunities for therapies in the areas of regenerative medicine, contraception, and targeted treatment regimens designed to combat various diseases.

Moreover, the capability of *in vivo* fluorescence spectroscopy to register and analyse endogenous fluorescent substances found within tissues and organs represents a distinctive niche of this technique within the larger spectrum of medical applications. Analogous to the phenomenon of autofluorescence, Raman spectroscopy further enables non-invasive measurements without necessitating exogenous labels, thus enhancing the hitherto prevalent practices of diagnosis and monitoring concerning cellular metabolism. This can also extend to assessing the contents of particular biomolecules through the diverse array of vibrational modes exhibited by chemical bonds present in biomolecules, along with identifying various tissue disorders. Each chemical compound uniquely demonstrates external vibration modes, which can be modified in diverse ways due to biochemical interactions or shifts that occur in pathological states.

Despite the prevailing presence of cumbersome and expensive instrumentation available in the current market, numerous successful clinical studies have been conducted across the globe within clinical settings. Additionally, various initiatives to develop compact laser-based instrumentation are underway, reflecting a dedication to innovation in this field. Quantum cascade lasers and optical parametric oscillators emerge as promising contenders for compact instrumentation that leverages Raman backscattering technology, owing to their broad spectrum coverage and thermal effects. Furthermore, optical methodologies investigating bio-tissues can serve as navigational and guiding tools, akin to the techniques employed by pathologists when examining tissue sample slices. The introduction and integration of compact laser-based photonics techniques have the potential to significantly enhance throughput screening processes for large volumes of bio-samples, aimed at identifying suspected areas with greater efficacy and precision. Techniques that utilize microscopic approaches such as nonlinear autofluorescence, harmonic imaging, and optical coherence tomography can provide invaluable insights, facilitating in vivo optical biopsies to confirm the presence of diseases [138, 81, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146]

### 4.1 Principles of laser operation

A laser system serves to efficiently and effectively generate a coherent, monochromatic, and highly directional beam of light. This remarkable capability is achieved by amplifying light waves through a very intricate and complex process that is widely recognized as stimulated emission. This innovative and highly effective method significantly increases the intensity of the light emitted while simultaneously minimizing any unwanted losses. Such losses can detract from the overall quality and performance of the beam, thereby reducing its effectiveness. The fundamental components that comprise a laser system, which greatly contribute to its exceptional functionality and effectiveness, typically include several essential key elements: [147, 148, 149, 150].

- A laser medium, which can be a solid, liquid, or gas, is pumped by an external power source in order to create a population inversion. This process involves selectively exciting electrons from the lower energy level to the upper energy level;
- 2. An optical cavity is carefully formed by mirrors, which work together to create a resonator that supports the necessary light amplification;

3. A quartz window is employed to effectively allow light to exit the optical cavity and propagate outward [151].

The laser medium consists of a specialized active medium in which the process of stimulated emission takes place, which is subsequently followed by intense light amplification. This specific laser medium differs significantly for each distinct type of laser, which leads to a fascinating variety of characteristics and performance outcomes that can be observed. The choice of particular laser media plays an absolutely crucial role in defining the overall behavior and various capabilities of the laser system. Laser media can be categorized into several primary types: namely gas, solid-state, liquid, and semiconductor. For example, a gas laser utilizes gas as its active medium, with some common examples including carbon dioxide and helium-neon, which serve as the vital active materials responsible for light emission. Each type showcases unique attributes and efficiencies that contribute to their performance in various applications across different fields [152, 153].

The simplest and most fundamental type of laser cavity typically consists of two parallel, highly reflective mirrors situated opposite each other. One of these mirrors, known as the output coupling mirror, reflects the vast majority of the beam while simultaneously allowing a tiny fraction of the beam energy to escape by being designed as partially transparent. This optical cavity effectively forms a resonator, where the laser beam continuously suffers repeated reflections from the cavity mirrors and is continually amplified by the active medium present within the system. Most of the optical energy stays circulating within the cavity for maximal efficacy, while only a minute amount escapes out into the surrounding environment. This balance of reflection and minimal emission is critical for the functionality and efficiency of the laser system [154, 155, 156].

The laser output beam is strikingly distinct when compared to that of a conventional light bulb. The defining characteristics of the radiation itself play a crucial role in determining the unique properties of the output beam produced by lasers. In contrast, most household light sources function to illuminate their immediate surroundings in an efficient and expeditious manner. This rapid illumination occurs mainly due to the isotropic radiation they emit, which disperses in random directions, encompasses a variety of wavelengths, and exhibits varying phases. Therefore, the light produced by these sources is incoherent and results in a constant level of illumination throughout the area [157, 158].

### 4.2 Types of medical lasers

All medical lasers can be categorized into six distinct types, each serving unique applications in various fields of expertise.

- Gaseous lasers, commonly referred to as gas lasers, utilize a gas or a combination of gases as the lasing medium that generates the laser light essential for their operation. To enable effective and efficient operation of these lasers, different configurations are employed to securely contain the gas between two mirrors that play a crucial role in the laser's functionality. The merge design typically functions under conditions of lower than atmospheric pressure, leading to more stable output, while the stable or unstable cavity designs have the capability to contain high-pressure gas mixtures that can operate at several atmospheres, greatly enhancing their performance. Among these, carbon dioxide (CO<sub>2</sub>) lasers stand as the benchmark for commercial designs, being widely used in diverse applications such as welding, cutting, and skin resurfacing treatments in both medical and industrial contexts. In addition to CO<sub>2</sub>, other gases such as argon, krypton, and various excimer gases also find their important use in both medical and industrial applications across different sectors. Moreover, diatomic molecules such as nitrogen and carbon monoxide are also included in this category of lasers. Various configurations such as flooded tube, slow-axial flow, and rapid-axial flow are employed effectively to contain the gas mixtures, which can be housed in specialized tubes made from glass, metal, or plastic, often functioning at atmospheric pressure.
- 2. The solid-state laser utilizes a solid material as its gain medium, providing excellent efficiency and output, contributing to its versatility in multiple applications.
- 3. The semiconductor laser, or laser diode, functions using a semiconductor material, showcasing compact size and impressive efficiency for a wide range of applications in modern technology.
- 4. Dye lasers, also referred to as organic solid-state lasers, employ an organic dye as the lasing medium, allowing for remarkable tunability across a substantial range of wavelengths, which enhances their utility in various scientific experiments.
- Fibre lasers utilize an optical fibre as their gain medium, offering unparalleled flexibility and high performance across diverse applications, including telecommunications and medical procedures.

6. Finally, the Free Electron Laser (FEL) represents a unique and innovative type of laser that utilizes a relativistic electron beam as its gain medium, providing exceptional capabilities for high-power operations across various scientific and medical fields, making it stand out for specialized research applications [138, 159, 160, 161, 162, 163, 164, 165]

Gas lasers stand as the oldest and most established class of lasers recognized in the vast fields of optics and technology. The very first gas laser that successfully functioned as a true laser was the helium-neon (He-Ne) laser, which was ingeniously invented by a remarkable figure in the year 1960. In that same groundbreaking year, the renowned fire code advisor made contributions of great significance by inventing, constructing, and successfully operating a Continuous-Wave (CW) gas laser, thereby furthering the development of laser technology. While solid-state lasers were simultaneously being developed independently around this time period, they are generally classified as the second type of laser. This classification is due to the fact that the first solid-state continuous-wave laser was invented somewhat later than the earlier gas laser counterparts. Following these advancements in laser technology, fibre and semiconductor lasers emerged, representing significant progress and innovation in the field. The most recent introduction in this expansive realm, free-electron lasers, came into being during the transformative 1970s, marking a thrilling new chapter in laser innovation and application. It is worth noting that gas lasers have found extensive applications and have been utilized for the longest duration within the field of biomedicine, demonstrating their significant relevance and immense importance in medical practices and therapeutic techniques. Their versatility and effectiveness in various medical applications ensure that they continue to be an essential tool in advancing healthcare technology [80, 81, 166, 167, 168, 169]

#### 4.3 Laser-tissue interactions

The interaction of laser beams with biological tissues provides a foundational basis for the emergence of numerous innovative biomedical applications, which encompass an extensive range of procedures from surgical interventions and tissue ablation to various forms of biostimulation and advanced imaging techniques. Some of these significant applications can be executed either in a direct contact regime where the laser interacts closely with the tissue or in a noncontact regime, depending on the specific requirements of the procedure. This flexibility is crucial, provided that the selected laser beam operating parameters are meticulously calibrated to align

perfectly with the relevant optical properties of the target tissue being treated. The current paper meticulously outlines the foundational scientific principles governing laser-tissue interactions in the context of crucial phenomena such as light absorption, scattering, and dispersion that occur within biological tissues. Furthermore, it presents a comprehensive and detailed examination of how individual laser wavelengths, characterized by varying operational parameters including power, irradiance, pulse duration, and repetition rate can be strategically applied to achieve very specific interactions with target oral and dental tissues within the realm of dental practice. The application of lasers in dental practice has gained considerable attention and recognition in recent years, primarily due to their unique properties that can be effectively exploited across a broad spectrum of dental procedures. In many of these innovative applications, the laser directly interacts with hard tissues such as teeth and bone, necessitating a thorough and in-depth understanding of the complex interactions involved. The present review delves into an extensive investigation of the theoretical aspects underpinning such interactions, utilizing refined and sophisticated models based on the intricate interaction of propagating electromagnetic waves with various forms of biological matter. This exploration aims to deepen the understanding of laser-tissue interactions for significantly improved clinical outcomes in applications that are relevant to dental health and beyond, paving the way for future advancements in the field [170, 171, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 177, 178]

Models of laser-tissue interaction have been meticulously developed, encompassing both absorptive as well as transparent biological soft tissues, in addition to rigid hard tissues. These specialized models have undergone rigorous validation through direct comparison with a variety of published experimental data. This validation process serves to reinforce their reliability and accuracy in practical applications. The practical application of these models, through a variation of numerous parameters, offers substantial insight into the intricate interaction mechanics regarding a wide range of influential factors. Key details include parameters such as wavelength, power, and pulse duration concerning various lasers like argon, carbon dioxide, and neodymium: yttrium-aluminium-garnet. Furthermore, the biostimulation effects that are often claimed for low power, continuous wave laser applications in both soft and hard tissues are explored in detail, particularly in the context of identifying and distinguishing between thermal and non-thermal effects. To conclude, the implications of low-level laser therapy are thoroughly evaluated, especially in relation to its potential application within the crucial field of dentistry. This evaluation takes into account biohazard considerations that arise during ongoing laser research, the specific operating parameters that are employed, and the necessary regulatory restrictions that must be observed throughout these applications. It is critically important to note that the complexity of laser tissue interactions represents multifaceted phenomena occurring across multiple timescales and various spatial scales, thereby illustrating the rich and layered nature of these interactions in real-world scenarios [179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186].

The interaction of laser with biological tissue leads to a complex series of interconnected thermodynamic and physical events. Together, these events can lead to notable changes and modifications within the tissue, resulting in pathophysiological implications that ultimately alter the very state of that tissue. The myriad of physical and chemical interactions that arise during the engagement of a laser with biological tissues are extremely intricate in nature, and they often transpire concurrently. This intricate behavior is significantly influenced by a range of factors, including the power of the laser employed and the specific chemical structure of the tissues being examined.

Some interactions occur almost instantaneously, taking place within exceedingly short timeframes that may last only a few picoseconds, while others may extend over several minutes; this disparity in duration is primarily contingent upon the temporal expansion of the altered thermal effects generated by the laser. Furthermore, the nature of lasers encompasses both a physicochemical aspect, which refers to the chemical and physical processes involved during interaction, and a biomechanical aspect, which pertains to the mechanical effects and alterations experienced by biological tissues upon exposure to laser energy.

Lasers emit a wide variety of beam types spanning a considerable segment of the electromagnetic spectrum, encompassing everything from radio and microwave frequencies to terrestrial waves and ionizing radiations. This spectrum ensures that the effects can vary widely based on the context of their application. Regardless of which specific laser source is utilized, the overall quality and efficacy of the laser output are influenced by several factors. These factors include the coatings applied to the laser, the presence of any defects within the active matrix that may induce a range of imperfections, and additional variables that could potentially affect its overall performance and efficiency.

In essence, this dynamic field of study presents itself as both spatially

and temporally coherent. Such coherence inevitably leads to variations in the mass and type of brain tissue, as well as other types of tissue that are affected by the interaction between the laser and the biological structures involved. Thus, understanding these interactions becomes imperative for advancing medical technology and improving therapeutic interventions [187, 188, 184, 189, 190, 191].

# Chapter - 5

#### Clinical Uses of Lasers

A laser is defined as a highly intense and remarkably coherent narrow beam of light, which is uniquely equipped with selective frequency amplification made possible by the complex and intricate process known as stimulated emission of radiation. Photons, which are the fundamental carriers involved in this remarkable and extraordinary phenomenon, are massless elementary particles that are intrinsically linked to electromagnetic radiation, a form of energy that is universally recognized and celebrated as the most extensively studied variant of light within the entire spectrum. When we understand light as a potent form of energy that can be harnessed in various ways, we can delve much deeper into the intriguing, fascinating kinetic motion exhibited by photons, recognizing that this motion is, in principle, quantized in discrete levels that can be precisely measured. This intriguing quantization carries profound implications and expands into a wide range of applications that resonate significantly in both the fascinating realms of theoretical physics and cutting-edge technology. Through further exploration of these fundamental principles, we can unlock new potentials and innovations that continue to shape our understanding of the universe and influence various fields, paving the way for future breakthroughs [192, 193, 194, 195, 196, 197, 198].

Law and symptoms of fluorescence can be described in great detail by mathematical formulas. and The emission electromagnetically generated radiation that occurs without a dependency on temperature is referred to as fluorescence. There are several notable examples of this phenomenon, such as the absorption of energy from flames, as well as the absorption of energy from laser light sources. A particularly drastic and preeminent property that characterizes fluorescence is its timing, which can reveal important information about the process itself. Leveraging this unique property, fluorescence can be effectively routed into two distinct time frames for precise analysis: one being the Fourier domain, which relates to frequency and wavelength, and the other being the more classic time domain, which allows for the observation of changes over time in the emitted light. Understanding these frameworks is crucial for researchers and practitioners who study and apply fluorescent phenomena in various fields [199, 200, 201, 202, 203, 204, 205]

Photodynamic Therapy (PDT) is an advanced technique that employs a specialized photodynamic agent, which is essentially a photosensitizer that possesses a wavelength dependence related to its absorption spectrum and an unmodified specific site that is crucial for its functionality. A deep understanding of the intricate photo-deactivation mechanisms of the photosensitizer, alongside the generation and effect of reactive oxygen species on cell death, is critical for determining the overall efficacy of PDT in clinical applications. Human skin is one of the most complex organs in the human body, characterized by its intricate structure and various levels of organization that contribute to its overall function and health. In the quest to achieve a comprehensive understanding of skin morphology, significant advancements have been made in the development of multi-layer tissues, such as 3D skin substitutes, which mimic the natural structure of skin. The ideal 3D tissue should not only be skin-mimicking but also replicate the biochemical and physiological properties of genuine human skin. Furthermore, the noticeable change in temperature exceeding 0.25 milliseconds during experiments involving laser ablation can provide critical insights. Coupled with the alteration in fluorescence signal relative intensities measured before and after exposure to laser treatment, these findings can illuminate whether native fluorescence can be effectively applied for the non-invasive detection of pre-cancerous lesions, thereby enhancing patient outcomes in early diagnosis and treatment pathways [206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 211]

When the light absorption and scattering coefficients of various types of tissues are considerably smaller than the optical depth that is present, a notable and significant effect occurs within a representative volume of the tissue under study. This specific method facilitates a comprehensive and indepth investigation into the intricate propagation of laser light within optically thick tissues. The detailed analysis can be conducted through several approaches, including spectral, temporal, or spatial means on the returning light signals, and these analyses serve the important purpose of effective and precise tissue characterization. The effects that are induced within the tissue as a direct result of laser exposure are heavily influenced by both short-term and long-term laser parameters that are meticulously monitored and carefully controlled throughout the procedure. The composition of the laser beam is strategically employed for various specific purposes: to selectively destroy targeted tissues, to achieve precise and accurate laser dissection, to rejuvenate a specific micro volume of tissue, or to physiologically modify biological structures in a completely controlled manner. Various crucial aspects of tissue analysis are employed with the overall objective of developing comprehensive and robust diagnostic criteria and monitoring, in situ, the effects and outcomes of laser exposure over time. This ensures that the tissue integrity and functionality are preserved and maintained throughout the entire process. This multifaceted and integrated approach to tissue analysis is crucial for advancing the field of medical science and significantly enhancing treatment effectiveness and outcomes [212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218]

## 5.1 Laser surgery techniques

In a growing number of cutting-edge biomedical applications that are currently under rigorous investigation, particularly within the dynamic and rapidly evolving field of neurosciences, there exists a pressing and urgent need to perform highly precise and exceptionally delicate surgical interventions on microscopic nanometric structures of immense importance. These structures include vital components such as synapses, organelles, and other minuscule entities that reside within complex biological tissues. In this specific context, we report the advent of new and advanced laser technology that has made it possible to attain the critical threshold necessary for conducting sophisticated cellular nanoscopies. This innovative technology not only facilitates the gentle and controlled manipulation of non-neuronal cells in living brain slices but stands as a significant breakthrough for the field as a whole. Specifically, the laser surgery performed on Nitrile Rubber (NBR) within either an ambient environment or an ethanol medium enables a swift on-the-fly processing method that is highly efficient. This is an important development that yields a diverse array of NBR nanostructures, including nanodots and nanoribbons, which hold great promise for extensive research and practical applications in various aspects of biological study.

The NBR nanodots generated through this advanced technique have proven to be highly effective agents for the selective labeling of various types of mammalian cells cultured *in vitro*, including notable examples such as neuro2a cells, HeLa cells, and primary cultured smooth muscle cells, along with Schwann cells, which are critical in the peripheral nervous system. Furthermore, these nanodots possess exceptional properties, including brilliant and vivid photoluminescence, making them highly applicable for rapid cellular imaging in live neuro2a cells. This remarkable advancement in nanotechnology construction is only feasible under a specific set of carefully controlled laboratory conditions. These conditions encompass an appropriate output laser power, a precisely measured incubation time within the suitable liquid medium, and a desired thickness of

the nanotube to ensure the successful production of 1- to 2-nanometer ND (Nanodiamonds) structures.

The application of Laser Nano-Neurosurgery (LNN) on individual neuronal cells, distinct synapses, and support scaffolds represents a major focus of ongoing discussions and research efforts aimed at achieving gentle manipulation and advanced nano-incision techniques within a variety of neuroscience applications. This growing field of research continues to explore the vast potential and implications of these nanostructures and the innovative practices stemming from their use, paving the way for groundbreaking advancements in the understanding, diagnosis, and treatment of various neurological conditions. The integration of these methodologies into existing frameworks promises to significantly expand our capabilities in complex biological investigations and enhance our understanding of cellular mechanisms involved in health and disease [219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227].

The utilization of lasers in the examination and treatment of biological tissues presents an impressive and expansive range of applications and holds significant promise for advancing both fundamental biological research and providing precise, effective diagnostics and sophisticated therapies for a variety of medical conditions that affect human health. Many innovative techniques have been established and meticulously refined over the years to harness the potential of lasers in the biological sciences effectively. These groundbreaking techniques encompass several diverse modalities, including, but not limited to, laser surgery, which allows for exceptionally precise surgical interventions with notably improved recovery times, thereby contributing to minimal invasiveness for patients while enhancing surgical outcomes. Additionally, laser coagulation is employed to effectively manage and control bleeding during surgical procedures with remarkable precision, making it a vital tool in the arsenal of modern surgical techniques. Furthermore, advanced imaging techniques such as laser photoacoustic imaging significantly enhance imaging capabilities beyond traditional methods, allowing for more detailed visualization of biological tissues in real time. In addition to these critical applications, there are also laser-assisted diagnostic methods available, including Laser-Induced Fluorescence (LIF) and laser-induced Raman spectroscopy, both of which provide invaluable information regarding tissue composition, cellular structure, and overall health status, offering deeper insights into pathological conditions. Moreover, the myriad applications of lasers directed at biological tissues can be thoughtfully classified into three primary categories based on the degree of interaction that occurs between the emitted light and the biomaterials they encounter, thereby assisting in targeted therapy and diagnosis. This thoughtful classification aids researchers and medical professionals alike in better understanding and further optimizing the multiple laser applications available for both groundbreaking medical treatment and comprehensive investigative research efforts. Consequently, the future of laser technology in biological sciences looks exceptionally promising, with advancements likely to yield even more innovative applications in an array of medical fields, improving patient care and broadening the scope of achievable therapeutic outcomes. As this cutting-edge technology continues to evolve, we may witness revolutionary changes in the way we approach diagnosis and treatment, ultimately leading to more effective and personalized healthcare solutions [138, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235]

# 5.2 Laser in dermatology

Since the groundbreaking invention of the laser in the year 1960, lasers have progressively found numerous applications across a wide array of industries, with one of the most transformative areas being the field of medicine, particularly in the essential scopes of diagnostics and therapeutic practices. Among the various domains extensively explored within the expansive realm of medical science, laser therapy has undeniably emerged as the fastest-expanding field, showcasing an impressive variety of applications in the continually evolving life sciences sector. Specifically, cosmetic laser therapy, which encompasses non-ablative applications, has swiftly gained recognition as an innovative and highly effective treatment option for individuals grappling with the persistent challenges of photo-damaged skin or various dermatological concerns. This advanced technique operates fundamentally based on the crucial principle of delivering selective damage to skin chromophores, a sophisticated process that effectively stimulates significant repair mechanisms and importantly promotes the re-arrangement of collagen fibers within the treated skin area, thereby enhancing the overall aesthetic appearance of the skin.

As ongoing research continues to unfold and the introduction of new laser types is embraced, there is a remarkable enhancement of laser technology in the specialized realm of dermatology. This continuous progress is instrumental in further advancing our knowledge and understanding of the intricate interactions that transpire between lasers and skin, which serves as a key element for consistently achieving successful laser treatments in diverse scenarios. A comprehensive overview of these noteworthy developments is being presented meticulously to highlight the continuously evolving landscape of laser technology in the essential sphere

of healthcare. Over the past few decades, laser therapy has undeniably become one of the fastest-growing areas in the prestigious medical field overall, particularly flourishing within the intricate realms of dermatology and cosmetic medicine. Despite the fact that lasers were initially incorporated into dermatology practices close to 50 years ago, it is only in recent years that they have begun to receive widespread acceptance and utilization among dedicated dermatologists and cosmetic physicians, marking a significant and transformative shift in established medical practices. Such advancements promise to enhance patient care and widen the scope of treatments available in modern medicine [81, 236, 237, 238, 239, 240, 241, 242].

Lasers make use of specific wavelengths and pulse durations of physiologically harmless radiation, which provides the capability for precise and selective targeting of skin chromophores present in human tissue. A variety of health issues, which include unwanted vascular lesions, pigmented lesions, tattoos, scars, unwanted hair, and photo-damaged skin, all share a common characteristic: they can be effectively treated through the accurate selective targeting of skin chromophores by utilizing laser radiation. Among these concerns, procedures aimed at hair removal, skin tightening, and resurfacing have gained remarkable popularity in both the healthcare and cosmetic industries. This trend is especially prominent among the general public who are actively seeking out aesthetic enhancements and improvements. In addition to the actual laser procedures themselves, the socalled "modern" techniques including a wide range of laser devices, specialized consumables, handpieces, and much more are now regarded as a unique and distinct specialty within the dermatological field. Notably, in the United States, there has been a growing movement towards implementing more stringent regulations concerning laser training and operation practices. This is primarily aimed at ensuring that the treatments delivered to patients remain both safe and effective.

In recent years, significant advancements have been seen in technology, particularly regarding the design and engineering of lasers, as well as the development of innovative laser devices along with disposable handpieces. Such innovations allow practitioners to exert even greater control over the specific parameters of laser treatments, resulting in enhanced safety, effectiveness, and overall efficacy for a wide range of procedures performed. While the indications for and availability of traditional techniques have remained relatively unchanged over the last three decades, the advent of lasers and other light sources has brought about a profound transformation in the landscape of cosmetic dermatology and aesthetic medicine. Thanks to the

remarkable capabilities inherent in lasers which allow for the selective targeting of skin chromophores, these advanced technologies have quickly emerged as the preferred choice for treating a diverse array of skin conditions. This includes benign pigmented lesions, various types of vascular lesions, tattoos, scars, unwanted hair, and even more aging-related skin issues such as collagen-deficient skin that can exhibit visible signs of wear, damage, or deterioration. The revolution in cosmetic dermatology brought about by the introduction and utilization of lasers has opened up entirely new avenues for treatments that previously had limited options available to patients seeking aesthetic solutions and improvements [243, 244, 245, 246, 247, 80, 248, 249, 250]

## 5.3 Laser in ophthalmology

Ophthalmology is a highly specialized branch of science that is dedicated extensively to the comprehensive study and deep understanding of the human eye. This fascinating field encompasses a multitude of various aspects, including critical areas such as its physiology, intricate anatomy, complex pathophysiology, and consequently, a wide array of associated problematic activities and conditions that can arise. The field of ophthalmology incorporates several crucial elements which include detailed examination diagnostics, effective therapeutic treatments, and intricate surgical procedures that are specifically aimed at addressing numerous diseases or disorders that adversely affect ophthalmologic tissues. In addition to diagnosing and treating these critical issues, ophthalmology also engages significantly with problems related to comprehensive optical analysis and the correction of various visual defects that many individuals may experience.

Notably, the principles, methodologies, and innovative techniques that are utilized within ophthalmology can be effectively adopted and employed not just on humans but can also be successfully utilized on a wide variety of other animals, thereby underscoring its broad and universal relevance across species. Furthermore, the areas of innovation within this essential field include biomechanical treatment options for intrabulbar implanted prostheses which are manufactured specifically for another individual, in addition to advanced and cutting-edge research endeavors such as the Stochastic Modelling of Thrombus Propagation, which ultimately finds practical applications in the meticulous management of complex conditions like a Brain Shunt. The discipline of ophthalmology also intriguingly engages with classic artistry through a unique and refreshing optical perspective, and it is supported by a plethora of captivating and informative popular science films which are aimed at captivating not only seasoned

professionals in the field but also an interested 'outsider' audience that wishes to gain insights into this critical area of study.

A wide assortment of sophisticated diagnostic tools and therapeutic options exists within this dynamic domain, catering comprehensively to the diverse needs of both practitioners and patients alike, emphasizing the multifaceted nature of the services offered. Moreover, there are numerous semi-professional resources readily available for individuals who seek to engage with or explore the intricate complexities of this fascinating field, making it increasingly accessible for those who are genuinely keen to learn more about the broad spectrum of opportunities available within the world of ophthalmology. These resources play a vital role in education and understanding, bridging the gap between professional practices and public knowledge, thereby enriching the field further [251, 252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 257, 258].

Eye problems can significantly affect not merely the quality of life but also the very quantum of life itself, thereby influencing overall personal well-being in numerous and profound ways. Consequently, there exists a wide spectrum of (ab)normalities along with hundreds of different diseases that can afflict individuals, each requiring their respective treatments, which are employed in both professional medical environments and semiprofessional settings. Various types of lasers have been adopted and meticulously tailored to help maintain optimal health of the eyes, ensuring both the quality of vision and the effective management of intraocular pressure, which is crucial for preventing more serious complications and potential visual impairment. Furthermore, some new and relatively modern applications, inventions, or innovations of different kinds of lasers have also been extensively discussed in this chapter, highlighting ongoing developments and emerging technologies in the rapidly evolving field of ophthalmology. These advancements not only underline the importance of staying current with the very latest technology and methods available for treating diverse and complex eye-related issues but also contribute significantly to achieving better health outcomes and enhanced quality of life for patients overall. As research progresses and new techniques and methodologies are developed, it is essential to remain informed, as this knowledge and awareness can lead to improved patient care, more effective treatment options, and ultimately a greater understanding of eye health that can benefit individuals across various demographics [259, 260, 261, 262, 263, 264, 265].

In the expansive and intricate realm of lasers utilized in this highly specialized field, there truly are no limitations whatsoever when it comes to the myriad of options available for use by professionals and practitioners. All the various generic types of lasers can indeed be effectively employed, but it is crucial to recognize and acknowledge that only certain specific varieties are suitable for treatment purposes, while numerous others are specifically designated for a variety of different (non)invasive examinations, diagnostics, or a diverse array of therapy options. Among the impressive suite of advanced technology accessible in this fascinating field, the Civic exam-star models, specifically the remarkable S2, S3, and S4, epitomize cutting-edge types of excimer lasers that have been explicitly designed for the purpose of performing refractive surgery. These particular models possess all of the current and up-to-date capabilities necessary for effective and efficient treatment within this complex arena. Furthermore, in addition to these advanced and technologically superior models, there exists a wide array of laser equipment that has been meticulously tailored for this intricate discipline, with each piece of equipment serving distinct and unique functions as well as applications that are ultimately aimed at enhancing patient care while simultaneously improving overall treatment outcomes. Such an impressive diversity in equipment allows for a more comprehensive, holistic approach to treatment and diagnosis, ensuring that patients receive the best quality of care possible during their procedures and engagements [244, 266, 267, 268, 269, 270]

# **Chapter - 6**

Nanomedicine: An Overview

Nanomedicine has emerged as a rapidly evolving and transformational discipline that has grown and extended significantly, largely due to the innovative combination of several fast-developing fields operating at the microscale, nanoscale, and molecular scale. Nanomedicine generally refers to the application of the revolutionary field of nanotechnology in medicine and pharmacy, with a strong and dedicated focus on the development and creation of sophisticated nanoscale systems for the analysis and interaction within complex molecular biosystems. Nanomedicine concerns itself with the extensive application of nanobiotechnology across various domains such as genetic, genomic, immunologic, proteomic, metabolomic, and cell biology investigations. It also plays a critical role in the development and manufacturing of state-of-the-art medical devices based on nanoparticles, as well as advancements in nanoimaging, nanotherapeutics, and nanoformulations aimed meticulously at achieving precise, controlled, and safe drug delivery in vivo. Currently, nanomedicine is in an exceptionally critical transition phase, moving rapidly from the successful proof-ofconcept stage into an increasingly complex series of applications that are expected to enter clinical use over the next decade. In particular, we have witnessed significant advances and breakthroughs in the fields of nanoparticles which have been developed as innovative drug delivery systems, effective contrast agents for in vivo imaging, magnetic hyperthermic agents, and versatile nanovectors designed specifically for RNAi delivery. Concerning fundamental research areas, early results have proven the unique and unprecedented chemical and physical properties of Nanoparticles (NPs) and their wide-ranging applications in bioanalysis. Notably, this includes the pioneering generation of bioconjugated Quantum Dots (QDs) that have been applied as highly sensitive fluorescent probes, alongside the development of the first chips featuring noble metal NP tags for enhanced colorimetric readout results. These remarkable results opened up a new frontier in the field of NP-based biosensing systems, leading to the creation of many highly sensitive and rapid novel bioassays capable of detecting biomarkers in the picomolar to zeptomolar range. Another intensive area of exploration and research emerged in the early 2000s, marked by prominent and significant outcomes related to NP-based drug delivery systems (DDSs), which have emerged as a new, exciting class of nanomedicines. In this regard, groundbreaking results were achieved with the introduction of the first nano-sized systems composed of silica, liposomes, and block copolymer micelles. These systems are designed for the encapsulation and effective delivery of small molecular weight drugs. Such NP platforms exhibit high versatility and offer numerous functionalization options which have been designed to resist protein opsonization adequately, achieve a suitable circulation half-life, and ensure selective and efficient accumulation within tumors through the enhanced permeability and retention effect, thus paving the way for advancements in targeted therapeutic strategies [33, 271, 272, 273, 274, 92, 275, 276, 277, 278].

## 6.1 Definition and scope of nanomedicine

Nanomedicine harnesses the exceptional and unique properties of nanoscale components, which range from 1 to 100 nanometers, for a wide array of purposes such as diagnosis, treatment, monitoring, control, and prevention of various diseases. It is a burgeoning field that is fundamentally rooted in the application of nanotechnology to the domains of healthcare and medicine; essentially, it represents a specialized branch of the broader field of nanotechnology. One innovative approach in nanomedicine uses the rod-shaped virus derived from the tobacco mosaic plant, known as TMV, to ferry medicines directly into cells and/or tissues. This cutting-edge aspect of nanomedicine is aimed at effectively treating diseases utilizing specially designed nanomaterials or advanced devices.

Moreover, one of the significant roles of nanomedicine is to facilitate rigorous testing that seeks to understand and analyze the impacts of various medicines and toxic compounds on organs, tissues, cells, and their intricate components specifically, cell organelles. The fundamental properties of materials significantly alter when their size is reduced to the nanoscale, thereby enabling nanotechnology to present an entirely transformative science and technology landscape for the scientific community at large. This impressive domain of nanomedicine amalgamates numerous scientific and engineering principles that span across disciplines such as chemistry, physics, biology, biochemistry, biomaterial science, and electronics, alongside advanced fields like computer technology, nanomicro- and microfabrication, as well as bioimaging, drug screening and delivery, and a critical area known as nanotoxicology.

In essence, nanomedicine represents a significant application of nanotechnology within the biomedical field, standing at the precipice of immense mass-market opportunities, which are estimated to encompass a staggering \$10 billion market within the burgeoning sub-field of biotechnology. Nevertheless, it is paramount to recognize that nanomedicine encompasses far more than merely biomedical applications of nanoparticles, drug delivery mechanisms, and imaging agents. Every single dosage of medicine currently prescribed in today's healthcare system fundamentally relies on the specific formulation of bulk materials and the use of devices that encapsulate a significant quantity of the active therapeutic substances.

Looking ahead to the next 10 to 20 years, it is expected that these traditional formulations will undergo dramatic changes as they evolve to fully leverage groundbreaking discoveries within the science of matter, extending down to the nanometer scale. Several areas within nanomedicine are surfacing that harbor considerable promise; however, these areas are largely driven by the development of new drugs based on recently unveiled fundamental scientific principles. In addition, other emerging territories of nanomedicine that have come to light only in recent times include the potential application of gold nanoparticles in X-ray imaging and therapy, alongside the innovative development of Carbon Nanotubes (CNTs) and Metal Organic Frameworks (MOFs) as novel forms of drugs and therapeutic devices. Ultimately, the overarching goal of this transformative field will be to meticulously assemble these pioneering materials into groundbreaking drug-depot devices that remain inactive until a specific delivery signal is accurately detected [279, 280, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 288, 289].

#### 6.2 Nanoparticles in drug delivery

In recent decades, the introduction of a variety of innovative synthetic and engineering strategies has led to the production of an expansive and varied library of inorganic and organic Nanoparticles (NPs) that exhibit diverse properties that are unmatched by bulk materials. The subsequent exponential growth of research interest in these materials has spurred numerous applications across various fields, including catalysis, sensors, optical devices, energy solutions, and drug delivery mechanisms. This surge in research has facilitated the rapid advancement toward the full utilization of these nanomaterials in life sciences, which has been thoroughly supported by the progressive development of nanomedicines. In recent years, the immense potential of nano-bio interfaces structures generated by NP-based drugs that intertwine nanoparticles with biological systems has been subject to extensive investigation. Such nanomedicines have demonstrated

significantly improved therapeutic effects across a wide range of diseases. Despite this progress, as these novel nano-bio interfaces develop and contribute to in vivo applications, new analytic tools have emerged to address the complexities inherent in this field. Current imaging techniques have managed to resolve a broad spectrum of nano-bio interactions, yet several significant challenges persist. Specifically, there is a pressing need for innovative approaches to answer crucial questions regarding the characterization of drug distribution at the organelle level, particularly at the single-nanoparticle resolution. It becomes absolutely essential to probe NPbased drugs directly within living systems, and to correlate NP information effectively with advanced bio-imaging techniques. Moreover, the rising capabilities of imaging technologies that allow for nanometer-scaled localization, specificity, and depth have fostered increased interest in characterizing NP-based cancer therapeutics through a variety of imaging modalities. In order to tackle these pressing challenges head-on, the development of next-generation imaging modalities is crucial for advancing in vivo bio-inspired NP-based drug applications. Concurrently, these advanced technologies promise to enhance reliability and safety for several treatments that are currently provided by conventional drugs. As such nanosystems do not exist merely in isolation as free-flying point-like entities, it becomes fundamentally important to create analytics capable of accessing their intricate interactions with biological specimens, achieving both singlenanometer resolution and specificity. The currently existing technologies either fall short of providing the necessary resolution to achieve this aim in three dimensions or lack the ability to yield insightful molecular information due to the ensemble averaging that they perform. For any effective clinical trial concerning the biological application of a NP-based drug, it is absolutely paramount to fully characterize the interactions with the selected biological system across all relevant scales. A thorough understanding of NP viability fundamentally relies upon a precise knowledge of stability, which must be followed by a detailed assessment of potential NP disassembly mechanisms operating under the specific delivery conditions presented [33, 290, 65, 291, 292, 293, 294, 295]

## 6.3 Nanotechnology in diagnostics

Nanotechnology has emerged as an incredibly powerful and versatile tool in the ongoing efforts for the diagnosis, treatment, and management of numerous diseases and various medical conditions that affect countless individuals around the globe. In the expansive and ever-evolving field of medical research, with its diverse applications and promising future, this

remarkable technology is actively transforming how dedicated medical professionals examine, diagnose, prevent, and ultimately treat a wide array of diseases and pressing health issues. These nanosized materials possess unique and advantageous properties that allow them to be effectively combined with biological agents, which consequently enables them to be utilized as advanced and highly specialized contrast agents that lead to enhanced and significantly more accurate diagnoses in various medical contexts. X-ray imaging plays an absolutely vital and essential role in facilitating the monitoring of the entire treatment process and in the precise and accurate diagnosis of a multitude of diseases and medical conditions that affect patients of all ages. In order to significantly increase the capability and overall effectiveness of X-ray imaging techniques utilized in both clinical and research settings, innovative and cutting-edge nanomaterials can be judiciously employed for both preclinical studies and clinical applications. This approach greatly enhances diagnostic precision and improves treatment outcomes, ultimately offering hope and better health management for patients facing complex medical challenges. The incorporation of nanotechnology into medical diagnostics and therapies is paving the way for a new era of healthcare that emphasizes personalized and precise treatment strategies [33, 271, 296, 297, 92, 298, 299, 93, 300]

Up-conversion gold-dextran nanocomposite has been ingeniously and thoughtfully developed to actively serve as a remarkably potent and highly effective agent for both in vitro and in vivo immunoassays. The nanomaterials that have been meticulously and deliberately developed exhibit tunable and highly efficient Nanothermo Luminescence (NTL) emission when subjected to an 808 nm laser excitation, offering remarkable and unprecedented opportunities in the rapidly advancing field of medical diagnostics. Thanks to the strategic and well-planned incorporation of gold nanoparticles, the NTL properties of the developed nanocomposite can be significantly and substantially enhanced through a coating of Polyethylene Glycol (PEG), resulting in a surface that exhibits impressively low levels of non-specific adsorption, which is absolutely crucial for maintaining accuracy and precision in immunoassay applications. This innovative and cutting-edge nanomaterial was successfully utilized for the precise and effective detection of Carcinoembryonic Antigen (CEA) in human serum samples, revealing its reliability, stability, and effectiveness in various clinical settings. Additionally, compelling images of the mouse model were meticulously captured to confirm the remarkable and impressive effectiveness of the developed assay method, showcasing its utility and applicability in preclinical research environments. A new, highly sensitive and specific probe, based on this up-conversion gold-dextran nanocomposite, has been successfully developed, emerging as an incredibly potent agent for both *in vitro* as well as *in vivo* immunoassays, thus significantly broadening its applications and potential impacts in the healthcare sector. In summary, a novel gold-dextran nanocomposite, characterized by high up-conversion luminescence properties and remarkable features, has been innovatively developed and shown to demonstrate its substantial and promising potential for both *in vitro* and *in vivo* immunoassays, paving the way for improved and enhanced diagnostic capabilities in various medical fields and contributing significantly to advancing scientific research and therapeutic approaches [301].

Traditional fluorescence signal output detection can resolve issues of dye photobleaching, stability, and non-specific adsorption for the detection of biomolecules. The developed nanocomposite can produce Nano-Thermo Luminescence (NTL) under 808 nm laser excitation at 680 and 710 nm. Numerous devices can potentially address the vital issues of chemical and biological detection in medical aspects. Nano-thermo luminescent materials can effectively improve the detection approaches in biomedicals. Transition metal phosphide has been adopted extensively in detecting biomolecules due to its luminescent ability. The W-based phosphide incorporated into polyacrylic acid exhibits up-conversion near infrared emissions under 808 nm laser excitation and is effective in detecting bioanalytes. The presence of gold nanoparticles facilitates urine EV capture by the use of antibody functionalization [302, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308].

# Chapter - 7

# Nanomaterials and Their Biomedical Applications

Nanomaterials hold a significant position in the rapidly evolving field of modern nanotechnology, a domain characterized by innovation and cuttingedge research. This specific term has been employed to refer to materials whose dimensions are within a range from 1 to 100 nanometers (nm). When materials are confined to this minuscule size range, they exhibit remarkable properties, such as a high surface area per unit mass, increased reactivity, and distinct quantum effects that arise as size-dependent characteristics. The unique properties conferred upon nanomaterials due to their nanoscale dimensions result in their extraordinary behavior when compared to bulk counterparts. Consequently, this leads to the development of an array of advanced nanostructured devices, innovative sensors, efficient catalysts, versatile adsorbents, specialty fillers, cosmetics, and various other applications. In the vital biomedical field, nanomaterials find extensive application as diagnostic tools, therapeutic agents, and crucial components in sophisticated drug delivery systems. The incorporation and application of biocompatible nanocomposites within tissues and organs stimulates ongoing research and exploration within a broad spectrum of life sciences. This includes areas such as nanomedicine, innovative drug delivery technologies, and the burgeoning field of tissue engineering. The interplay between nanobiotechnologies and nanomaterials has been harnessed to design and create a diverse range of highly efficient diagnostic tools, biosensors, and advanced devices aimed at the prevention, treatment, and monitoring of numerous diseases, including various forms of cancer and neurodegenerative disorders. Hence, the integration of this neuromedicine and nanobiotartrix should be meticulously considered when approach designing nanobiomaterials for biomedical applications. This targeted approach encourages increased biocompatibility, enhances biological interactions, and ensures stability while also minimizing any potential cytotoxic effects. Moreover, the strategic use of biocompatible nanocarriers, which are fundamentally based on nanoparticles, enhanced nanocarriers, and advanced nanosurfaces, contributes to improving drug stability and prolonging the half-life of therapeutic agents while they circulate in the bloodstream. These nanocarriers also play a pivotal role in facilitating a sustained and controlled release of drugs, which is crucial for effective treatments. Furthermore, functionalization of these nanocarriers or conjugation with specific targeting ligands significantly increases the specificity of targeted drug delivery, ensuring that therapeutic agents are delivered precisely where needed. Surface modifications of nanosystems can greatly enhance biocompatibility, stimulate cellular adhesion, deter bacterial colonization, and modulate immune responses for optimized therapeutic outcomes [309, 310, 311, 312, 313, 314, 298, 315]

## 7.1 Types of nanomaterials

Nanomaterials represent a fascinating class of materials characterized by having at least one dimension that falls within the 1-100 nanometer range. This unique scale can be achieved through a variety of fabrication techniques, which can be broadly categorized into top-down and bottom-up methods. The range of nanomaterials includes, but is not limited to, nanotubes, nanorods, nanowires, nanocapsules, nanospheres, nanoshells, and nanostars, showcasing a diverse array of shapes and structures. These materials harbor exceptional properties, which set them apart from conventional materials. Notably, they exhibit a high surface-to-volume ratio, ensuring greater reactivity and interaction with their environment. Additionally, nanomaterials are known for their good stability under various conditions, high absorption rates, and increased binding capacities, making them highly effective in a multitude of applications. The applications of nanomaterials span a wide range of fields, particularly in modern medicine and diagnostics. They are increasingly utilized in drug and gene delivery systems, enhancing the effectiveness of targeted therapies. Imaging techniques such as Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI), Computed Tomography (CT), ultrasound, and photoacoustic imaging greatly benefit from the incorporation of nanomaterials. These materials serve as advanced contrast agents, enabling improved imaging quality and resolution. As the utilization of nanomaterials continues to expand, the fields of medical imaging and therapy are undergoing a significant transformation. The fabrication of nanomaterials for these purposes allows for the development of drug delivery systems designed with precision. Nanoparticles can be meticulously engineered to possess particular characteristics that improve their specificity and efficiency, facilitating better transport of drugs into targeted tissues and cells. This design strategy becomes especially relevant when nanoparticles are formulated to respond to environmental or biological stimuli. Such innovations present a promising approach for cancer-specific drug delivery systems, potentially increasing the efficacy of treatments while simultaneously reducing unwanted side effects. The continued research and development in the field of nanomaterials hold great promise for improving therapeutic outcomes and enhancing diagnostic capabilities in the medical field [310, 316, 317, 318, 319, 239, 320].

Currently, data suggests that approximately 2000 biotech drugs are undergoing various stages of development on a truly global scale. This broad portfolio encompasses a vast range of therapeutic modalities, including monoclonal antibodies, which account for about 14% of the total drug development landscape, along with recombinant hormones representing around 6%, and blood factors also comprising 6%. Moreover, monoclonal vaccines constitute approximately 4% of this innovative arena. Out of these pioneering products, about 400 have successfully progressed to the clinical phase, with an impressive 260 of those being in the final stages of rigorous clinical trials. It is particularly noteworthy that over 65% of these drugs are primarily developed in North America, while Europe contributes around 19% and Asia approximately 16%. The significance of targeted drug delivery systems and advanced imaging techniques is increasingly clear and undeniable in the contemporary landscape of biomedical research. Processes such as internalization, which are significantly influenced by the intricate ligand-receptor interaction cascades, are crucial for achieving effective and favorable treatment outcomes. However, the complexities inherent in the interactions between ligands and their respective receptors call for innovative and strategic approaches aimed at improving drug delivery methods effectively. One promising approach involves the enhancement of nanoparticle size, adjusted to a specific range of 50-100 nm, which has been shown to consistently improve efficacy in drug delivery via conjugates. Additionally, it is feasible and practical to modify or 'resurface' these sophisticated therapeutic systems to significantly increase their binding affinity towards specific receptors or ligands. Furthermore, the overall efficacy of these advanced drug delivery systems can be dramatically improved by employing a calculated combination of both non-targeted and targeted delivery methods; however, achieving this sophisticated balance requires careful and thoughtful design approaches. The implementation of trigger mechanisms can also play a vital and pivotal role in enhancing the delivery process of these therapeutic agents. From a chemical perspective, changes in environmental conditions can induce destabilization within the drug delivery system, ultimately resulting in the timely and controlled release of therapeutic payloads. The side effects associated with these agents often arise due to their inherent high toxicity levels, which remain a critical area of active investigation in the field. With continued advancements in the interdisciplinary field of chemistry and meticulous design principles, researchers are diligently working on creating safer drug delivery systems that are characterized by low molecular weight, an extended circulation time in the bloodstream, and higher tolerance levels, all paired with efficient drug loading capabilities. These groundbreaking innovations aim to enhance binding affinity for biological targets and facilitate effective endosomal escape, ultimately leading to better therapeutic outcomes and improved patient care [321, 275, 322, 323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328].

#### 7.2 Biocompatibility of nanomaterials

In the year 1959, the brilliant physicist Richard Feynman introduced what would become the foundational concept of nanotechnology by famously suggesting that "there is plenty of room at the bottom." This provocative statement opened the door to a new dimension of scientific inquiry and innovation. Moving forward to the early twenty-first century, the distinguished researcher Norio Taniguchi contributed to the field by formally defining "nanotechnology" as the precise processing of the separation, consolidation, and deformation of materials at the atomic or molecular level. Since that pivotal point in history, a vast array of sophisticated research pertaining to nanotechnology has emerged, leading to significant advances that have exponentially exceeded previous research boundaries. Furthermore, the concept of nanotechnology has been broadened and extended into an impressively diverse range of fields, which include but are not limited to physics, materials science, chemistry, medicine, and biology. With the rapid evolution and growth in our understanding of nanoscience, researchers have enthusiastically aimed to apply this newfound knowledge across various specific research areas within both engineering and applied science spheres. In particular, dramatic breakthroughs in the development and application of Nanomaterials (NMs) have marked a transformative new epoch in the realm of biomedical engineering. Biomedically focused researchers have dedicated their efforts toward developing nanomaterials that can precisely target designated biological targets, function as safe and efficient carriers for a myriad of agents, and facilitate advanced imaging as well as monitoring of complex biological processes. This ongoing research promises to significantly enhance our capabilities in diagnosing, treating, and understanding various health-related issues, making nanotechnology an exciting frontier in medicine and beyond [329, 330, 331, 332, 333, 334, 335]

In comparison to the various other technologies that are currently

available, the total number of biocompatible and biodegradable nanomaterials (NMs) remains rather limited and far from being abundant. However, despite this relative scarcity of options available, nanomaterials have remarkably gained tremendous popularity in recent years, and this surge can primarily be attributed to their pivotal role in not only enhancing our understanding of complex biological processes but also effectively treating a wide array of diseases. Additionally, they facilitate the progressive development of advanced diagnostic systems which are aimed specifically at the early detection of various illnesses, ultimately promoting better healthcare outcomes. A diverse range of nanocarriers has been meticulously fabricated for these critical purposes this includes quantum dots that are utilized specifically for sophisticated imaging techniques, silica MCM-41containing bioconjugates that have shown significant promise in a variety of drug delivery applications, and poly lactide-co-glycolic acid nanoparticles that are quickly becoming essential components for effective vaccine delivery systems. The extensive application and seamless integration of these innovative nanomaterials in the dynamic field of biomedical engineering have raised a critical and pressing question regarding the overall safety of these novel materials this burgeoning field of research is widely known as nanotoxicology, which specifically focuses on the complex study of biological interactions with various nanomaterials at the nano scale. Despite the numerous advantages these nanomaterials offer to the scientific community, the safety and potential toxicity of these newly developed nanomaterials still remain highly questionable and warrant further investigation. As the commercialization of nanomaterials becomes increasingly prevalent and their use is widely adopted in various sectors, concerns regarding their safety and possible toxicological effects are unequivocally coming to the forefront of many discussions and assessments. NMs are characterized by several unique and novel properties that include a large surface area, heightened reactivity, extraordinary mobility, alongside the potential to generate new forms of pollution. If we fail to give careful and comprehensive consideration to these potentially deleterious properties inherent in nanomaterials, those utilized in biomedical settings could understandably be expected to pose meaningful and severe risks to both human health and the environment as a whole, necessitating urgent attention and responsible management strategies [336, 337, 338, 339, 340, 341, 342].

## 7.3 Targeted therapy using nanoparticles

The intricate and dynamic relationship between cancer and

nanomedicine has now been well established and recognized within the scientific community; however, the strategic and purposeful application of Nanoparticles (NPs) for cancer treatment through a novel and innovative approach, which involves methodically exploring their physical effects on tumor tissues with great precision, is not yet fully exploited or completely understood in its entirety. The numerous advantages of Heavy Ion therapy, especially when compared to the more conventional and widely used Proton and Photon therapy methods, are initially presented in a concise and focused manner, as they are intrinsically linked to the synergistic potential that can emerge from various Nanomedicine strategies and applications. Following this introduction, more advanced and sophisticated approaches within the realm of nanomedicine that are based on intricate cellular processes and interactions, specifically the endocytosis of gold (Au) nanoparticles in what is referred to as the Gold Radio-Sensitization (GRS) process, are discussed in much greater detail across various dimensions. This comprehensive discussion includes a novel and cutting-edge production system for these particles that is currently under active development and is the ongoing subject of focused research and investigation in the specialized laboratories at L.B.D., aiming to unveil and explore the promising prospects and transformative potential of this innovative and emerging technology in depth. Moreover, this exploration not only emphasizes the crucial need for further advancements in the methodologies used but also highlights the significant importance of interdisciplinary collaboration and teamwork in driving this vital field forward, ultimately resulting in more effective and targeted cancer treatment options that have the potential to enhance patient outcomes significantly and improve survival rates over time. The continuous evolution of these diverse approaches will likely bring forth new and multifaceted challenges and opportunities that the scientific community must navigate and address to fully harness the capabilities and full potential of nanomedicine in the passionate fight against cancer and its debilitating effects on health and well-being [343, 344, 345, 346, 347, 297, 348, 349, 350, 351]

The mechanisms that govern the selective targeting of gold (Au) Nanoparticles (NPs) toward cancerous tissues are intricately detailed, emphasizing the specific vascularization characteristics that are exhibited by tumors and the subsequent endocytic uptake processes involved in this targeting. The typical energy level of the radiation generated by such particles, specifically those with energies exceeding 40 MeV, including alpha particles, presents a distinctive and highly promising perspective for harnessing the numerous benefits associated with nanotechnology in this

critical area of healthcare. This advancement encompasses a broad range of applications, ranging from the incorporation of innovative drugs and advanced nanoparticles into existing commercialized proton therapy units, to the strategic implementation of various Particle Therapy systems that operate at energies below 60 MeV. Such implementations effectively facilitate radioembolizations and allow for the precision-targeted delivery of treatments during the irradiation process, enhancing their effectiveness. There exists a rich and diverse array of both organic and inorganic nanoparticles, with several of these already undergoing clinical trials, demonstrating their potential to serve as effective radiosensitizers in cancer therapy. These nanoparticles have been meticulously developed through processes that have been optimized extensively within the fields of nanomedicine and materials science, leading to promising results. The necessary adjustments and optimizations concerning these drugs can be executed with precision, carefully considering various dimensional, electronic, and geometrical parameters that influence their efficacy. This exceptional level of fine-tuning can be achieved at a standard comparable to what has already been established for systems employing advanced photon therapy, thereby significantly enhancing therapeutic outcomes in the treatment of cancer and improving the overall effectiveness of ongoing clinical interventions [352, 353, 354, 355, 356, 357]

Nanomedicine encompasses several highly exciting and innovative perspectives that could dramatically transform the current clinical approaches utilized to treat malignant tumors. This transformation could pave the way for new and potentially groundbreaking clinical procedures or techniques to be developed and implemented at every stage of the treatment process. A considerable and extraordinary effort should be dedicated to optimizing the most effective nanoparticle design and the most suitable NP-drug usage strategies tailored to each specific malignant tumor type, as well as the selected type of therapeutic radiation utilized in treatment protocols [358, 346].

# Chapter - 8

# **Regulatory and Ethical Considerations**

Wireless sensor networks and Artificial Intelligence (AI) have been widely recognized as powerful techno-scientific tools that play a crucial role in addressing the global epidemic of breast cancer. This situation is particularly contextualized within the diverse socio-political and cultural scenarios present in both China and India. By employing these advanced technoscientific tools, we are able to delve into a range of ethical issues that arise. These issues encompass several significant factors: first, the ways in which techno-scientific tools meticulously organize various social and spatial aspects related to risk, vigilance, and patient safety; second, the broad social implications stemming from insuretech, AI technologies, and data brokerage, which contribute to the growing privatization and commodification of health care systems that extend beyond the confines of national borders; third, we must consider the ethical quandaries associated with the in/visibility of risk detection, as well as the perceptions held by patients, combined with the technical uncertainties that are continuously reshaping surveillance practices and influencing subjectivity; and lastly, we confront the political intricacies of the precarity affecting both human and nonhuman actors alike. This necessitates the establishment of an ethics of care that must operate on multiple levels global, national, organizational, and individual emphasizing the importance of compassion and responsibility in navigating these complex landscapes [359, 360, 361, 362, 363, 364].

Health care around the world is increasingly driven by advanced AI systems, yet the ethical and social ramifications of this significant shift are not fully understood or comprehended by the general public or even by many professionals in the field. Certain ethical issues, such as questions of trust, transparency, and evidence, have emerged prominently in recent public discourse surrounding this complex and multifaceted topic. Nonetheless, attention is often focused excessively on specific platforms, tools, and applications, rather than adopting broader systemic perspectives that encompass the entire health care landscape. This indicates a pressing need for a broader and more inclusive consideration of what is truly at stake when AI technologies are introduced into health care settings. These more

systemic issues cover both the desirable and undesirable consequences that may arise from multiple stakeholder perspectives, along with the attendant challenges for effective implementation and development of these transformative technologies. They encompass vital questions about how to manage AI's involvement in the ongoing transformation of health systems globally, such as critical issues of trust between patients and systems, the circumstances in which AI is genuinely useful and applicable (technical viability), and who should be held accountable for ensuring ethical data usage in AI-enabled health care contexts (data-centric considerations). Expanding the dialogue to include these essential systemic concerns will facilitate a more informed and thoughtful approach to integrating AI in health care and promote more equitable outcomes for all stakeholders involved, ensuring that innovations are applied in ways that benefit everyone while minimizing potential harms and ethical dilemmas [365, 366, 367, 368, 369].

Lustig proposed the intriguing concept of "silencing" to refer to the systemic and complex processes through which various concerns, perspectives, and voices are rendered inaudible and marginalized. This phenomenon of silencing occurs at a broad societal level, where prevailing techno-scientific paradigms dictate and define what constitutes legitimate understandings of risk. Within this framework, risk is often pre-digested into specific cultural assumptions and statistical renderings that align with dominant narratives. Scientists who engage in this work are frequently rewarded and celebrated, receiving accolades for their contributions to a narrow understanding of the issue, while alternative or divergent understandings of risk are typically dismissed or ignored. This continuous silencing of voices that create a misalignment with the prevailing views effectively undermines and breaks down the essential trust that is needed for effective scientific communication to thrive. Without support from the public, the prevailing narrative remains unchallenged, creating a scenario where better quality base references are sorely needed. A shift in focus toward long-term effects and patient safety becomes increasingly essential to ensure that the complexities of risk are adequately addressed and understood in a more comprehensive manner [370, 371, 372, 373, 374, 375, 376].

## 8.1 Regulation of medical devices

The translation of therapeutic solutions from pre-clinical concepts to market authorisation is an extensive and intricate journey that encompasses a multitude of diverse stakeholders. These include inventors, developers, technology transfer offices, regulatory authorities, patients, government entities, societal concerns, and many others who are all integral to the

process. This complex process begins with the critical phase of academic innovation, where due diligence is performed with high levels of meticulous attention. Developers then undertake the essential and important task of constructing a comprehensive and robust protection portfolio of Intellectual Property (IP) to safeguard their innovations and discoveries. Following this crucial step, a series of further essential actions occurs, such as the identification necessary for pre-clinical development, where specific targets and indications are carefully defined. Along with this, there is also the formation of strategic partnerships or the establishment of start-up companies that can effectively drive the research forward. The advanced development phase and eventual registration for market access are significant stages that must follow these initial steps. Each step in this highly complex journey necessitates the implementation of specific policies and procedures that should be meticulously tailored to the unique requirements at hand. In the realm of Research and Technology Development (RTD) within universities and academic institutions, there exists a pronounced need for well-defined project classifications. These classifications should accompany a well-structured set of setup guidelines, rules, and thorough documentation of both policies and procedures that govern the process. This framework also includes crucial considerations of cash flow management as well as the tools necessary for successful implementation and ongoing oversight. If there are sufficient funds available for these initiatives, this module could facilitate the establishment of theme-based project steering committees. Not only would these committees guide research initiatives effectively, but they could also serve as a responsive platform, enabling the seamless transition from the initial generation of ideas to project initiation or even further on to market authorisation. Such frameworks are indeed pivotal in fostering innovation and driving therapeutic advancements toward tangible and effective healthcare solutions [377, 378, 379, 380, 381, 382, 383, 384]

In 2014, an exceptionally influential and pivotal paper was published that meticulously described the intricate and sophisticated computational modeling of medical devices at the FDA. This insightful and comprehensive document takes a thorough and detailed look at the FDA's dedicated efforts, notable advancements, and extraordinary achievements stemming from the Office of Science and Engineering Laboratories (OSEL). It specifically focuses on how these significant efforts have effectively supported both the Office of Device Evaluation and the Office of *in vitro* Diagnostic Device and Radiological Health in their essential functions. The paper not only aims to settle the evolving landscape for future scientists to gain a much deeper and

clearer understanding of how the FDA begins its vital processes but also how it progresses in its formulation and operational methods over the last ten years. Additionally, it serves as a valuable and reflective reminiscence of the past decade in this critical field. It presents a significant highlight and snapshot of the current moment for researchers working across various sectors, including industry, academia, and other pivotal research institutions engaged in the field. The FDA expresses its sincere hopes for continued collaboration and synergy with researchers, aiming to push the boundaries of science and technology for the ultimate health benefit of the public at large. In this way, the document successfully lays down a critical foundation for future innovation, growth, and progress in the important and ever-evolving field of medical device regulation and development, enabling a thriving environment for researchers and stakeholders alike [385, 386, 387, 388, 389].

#### 8.2 Ethical issues in biomedical research

Desde sus inicios y hasta el día de hoy, la investigación biomédica ha sido y continúa siendo un tema de profunda preocupación ética. A lo largo de la historia, desde el periodo anterior a Nuremberg y posteriormente en relación al desarrollo del Código, este tema ha sido objeto de intensos debates y controversias. Estos debates han abarcado desde una gran preocupación sobre el trato y las condiciones de la investigación, hasta cuestiones más específicas referidas a la investigación que involucra a poblaciones vulnerables. En otras palabras, hay múltiples aspectos relacionados con la información que se proporciona a los pacientes y a los sujetos que participan en ensayos clínicos; estos aspectos incluyen el consentimiento informado, que es fundamental, el uso del placebo en los estudios, la administración del tratamiento estándar que debe considerarse, así como también el tipo de diseños de investigación que se llevan a cabo. Esto ha generado una serie de discusiones críticas y ha llevado a un desarrollo continuo de las normas éticas que rigen este campo [390, 391, 392].

Las reuniones de expertos internos de la comunidad científica y médica, junto a expertos en el área de bioética, han planteado muchos de estos debates, pero hay que llegar a la sociedad y a los grupos específicos. Por una parte, la incapacidad de la comunidad biomédica para percibir a tiempo el desbroce de la ética de la investigación biomédica y no actuar antes ha tenido consecuencias devastadoras. No es necesario aclarar el efecto de las denuncias sobre la conducta de la investigación en sentido amplio en África y en el Tercer Mundo, en donde ha disminuido marcadamente la posibilidad de hacer ensayos clínicos [393, 394].

Los cinco "beneficios" identificados por vidas en la historia de la ética de la investigación y de la protección de los sujetos de investigación han tenido, entre otros, un efecto "Flip" devastador y de amplio alcance. Estos impactos han socavado decisiones científicas que anteriormente se habían consensuado de manera irrefutable y que eran fundamentales para el avance de la ciencia. Además, han conducido a una exhaustiva revisión y reevaluación de ensayos clínicos que ya habían sido aprobados y considerados válidos. No es un indicio trivial ni insignificante que estas revisiones y reevaluaciones se estén realizando hoy en día, en ambos continentes, por igual, y que se fundamenten en diversos mecanismos regulatorios que pueden variar notablemente. Este fenómeno resalta la importancia de analizar la ética en la investigación y el efecto que tiene sobre la confianza en los procesos científicos actuales y futuros [395].

# Chapter - 9

# **Future Directions in Biomedical Physics**

Biomedical physics has experienced an unprecedented and exponential increase in remarkable scientific discoveries, significant advancements, and relevant demonstrations regarding innovative medical devices, cutting-edge diagnostics, and sophisticated imaging systems. Ideally, the most effective biomedical diagnostic imaging should incorporate advanced methodologies characterized by exceptionally high spatial and temporal resolutions. Furthermore, it is crucial to have access to a variety of techniques, particularly those that are already well established, such as Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI), Computed Tomography (CT), and Photoacoustic Tomography (PAT). Biomedical physicists engaged in this dynamic field must actively continue their work with current technologies and medical devices while simultaneously striving to create improved or entirely novel imaging modalities. This includes the development of enhanced imaging reconstructions, meticulous parameter extraction algorithms, sophisticated deep learning models, and efficient computation steps. Such advancements will significantly contribute to the creation of safer, more efficient, and faster imaging devices that can better serve clinical applications. Additionally, employing techniques related to advanced electronic components would play a key role in providing more effective imaging systems that enhance diagnostic accuracy. Despite the progress made in this field, several crucial aspects of biomedical physics remain under-investigated across the globe, presenting vast opportunities and urgent needs. These aspects include the exploration of multi-parameter bioimaging modalities, the development of in vivo multi-modal nano-biosensors, comprehensive biodistribution studies of nano-carriers, in-depth drug efficacy studies of multi-parameter therapeutics, and the intricate dynamics of interactions between nanomedicine and the complex biological environment. These promising research directions will significantly impact devices, diagnostics, imaging, and therapeutics within the realm of biomedical physics, shaping the future of healthcare delivery and patient outcomes [396, 397, 398, 399, 400, 401, 402]

The availability of X-Ray Free Electron Lasers (XFELs) has significantly opened up exciting and transformative prospects into time-

resolved studies of various chemical reactions, as well as comprehensive time-resolved investigations into the intricate structure of biomolecules and their complex interactions with other biomolecules. A more detailed and specific understanding of the underlying mechanisms of infection, along with the action of drugs performed at the nano-bio interface, will lead to substantial advancements in this field. Areas of active research and study include the potential combination of advanced imaging techniques with other Energy-Dispersive X-ray spectroscopy (EDX), such as fluorescence microscopy, or electron diffraction techniques. Furthermore, there are notable developments in X-ray absorption spectroscopy being carried out at hard X-ray synchrotrons, along with innovative progress in the development of compact, short-wavelength sources and their diverse applications in the field. Advanced characterization methods related to nanomedicine and nanomaterials are predicted to be a significant focus moving forward. In addition, non-X-ray free electron laser sources are expected to become more available for conducting time-resolved studies that explore the dynamic interactions of nanomedicine in the near future [33, 403, 404, 405, 406]

Bioimaging represents an area of major and significant research that boasts a vast and expanding commercial market, which is anticipated to experience strong growth in the upcoming years and decades ahead. While established and well-known imaging modalities are already available, specifically designed to cater to various applications and distinct needs, the demand for innovative and advanced imaging modalities remains crucial. This persistent need drives the ongoing research and development efforts in the bioimaging sector. Numerous emerging technologies show enormous potential and promise; however, there are considerable and substantial hurdles that must be overcome to fully realize their capabilities and advantages. Future progress in this dynamic field is expected to include the development of advanced imaging modalities that facilitate comprehensive 3D imaging of tissues and organs in vivo. Advances may lead to imaging techniques capable of achieving impressive high penetration depths across different tissue types and organs. Additionally, there is growing interest in imaging techniques based on refractive index contrast, which may offer groundbreaking insights and lead to novel applications in the medical and scientific communities. The commitment to overcoming the existing challenges will ultimately pave the way for innovations that could significantly enhance our understanding of biological processes and improve diagnostic and therapeutic approaches [407, 408, 409, 410, 411].

#### 9.1 Innovations in imaging techniques

A diverse panel of X-ray based techniques plays a crucial role in the field of nanomedicine, as the development of its components necessitates a comprehensive understanding of the created nano-bio-interface, its aggregation behaviour, and the repercussions of the various scalable production methods employed. Moreover, X-ray techniques are absolutely indispensable for the evaluation of the distribution, uptake, and eventual fate of nanomedicine after it has been administered in vivo. A careful and meticulous design of protocols can significantly reduce the radiation damages inflicted upon biological samples and also shorten the exposure time required for conducting operando experiments. Despite consideration of the radiation dose, X-ray imaging techniques tend to suffer from reduced accuracy when applied to thicker biological samples. This is attributed to the lower X-ray absorption contrast coupled with a stronger scattering background present in such samples. This lack of attention to specific factors results in a smaller effective penetration depth than what is typically predicted, leading to recurrently visible re-scattering effects in wide-field images. Additionally, photons that are converted from the rescattered X-rays further diverge upon entering scintillating plates, which in turn exacerbates the issue by expanding the blurring area in the resultant images. To mitigate these damaging effects, it is essential to achieve a delicate balance of methodological variables, which include spatial resolution, frame-rate, and observation depth, while consistently weighing them against the imperative need for data accuracy and integrity in the outcomes of the experiments [33, 65, 412, 413, 414, 415].

Hard X-rays have the remarkable ability to penetrate through biological tissues, making them a vital tool in various imaging applications, and they are often considered less harmful and safer compared to their softer counterparts, the soft X-rays. These hard X-ray imaging techniques stand out as robust and powerful methodologies for studying a wide array of biological processes in undecomposed, ambient, and live cells or organs *ex vivo*, which means outside the living organism but still maintaining a biological context. Various methods can be classified based on their principles of operation: absorption-dominant techniques which utilize meticulously tuned hard X-ray energies to provide clear imaging, phase-contrast-enhanced methods that exploit the refractive index perturbations found in biological samples for improved contrast, and fluorescence-imaging techniques that utilize the natural luminescence of certain biological markers to yield detailed images. Additionally, several innovative techniques electric, magnetic, and sonic

have been developed to further manipulate samples with precision and control. Furthermore, laser applications have been widely and effectively utilized for trapping and manipulating a diverse range of biological samples, from exceedingly small nanoscopic vesicles to larger mammalian cells. This advancement represents an exciting new experimental method that bridges the gap between existing kinetic methods and fast imaging techniques, promising a deeper and more comprehensive understanding of the intricate biophysical behaviors exhibited by such tiny samples. Moreover, nanoparticle-based laser-actuated manipulation techniques are anticipated to pave the way toward a more refined understanding of molecular dynamics or the complex mechanics involved in biomolecular assemblies, opening doors to numerous research possibilities in the field of biophysics and molecular biology [57, 65, 416, 50, 117, 417, 77].

### 9.2 Advancements in laser technology

The revolution that has occurred in laser technology, especially with the advancement of semiconductor lasers, has led to a significant and widespread expansion in the field of advanced photonics across many domains of science and technology. These innovative technologies, particularly the compact and affordable semiconductor lasers, have successfully found extensive applications across a wide array of fields, including but not limited to telecommunications, industrial laser processing, military and defense operations, various display technologies, entertainment and show business, astronomy, metrology and spectroscopy, biomedicine and biophotonics, as well as environmental monitoring and remote sensing. Additionally, they are instrumental in the development of sensors and in the field of power generation. One of the highly promising areas of laser application that has emerged is optical medical diagnostics, which stands at the very forefront of application and technological development on a global scale. The significance of this particular area can be greatly assessed by examining the fact that approximately 95% of human pathologies this represents around 85% of all classified diseases are related to changes and alterations in the inherent properties of biological tissue. Thus, the successful implementation and utilization of optical methods for non-invasive or minimally invasive investigations of bio-tissue hold the potential to represent an essential breakthrough and advancement in the field of medicine, paving the way for better diagnostic techniques and treatments for various medical conditions [138, 418, 419, 420, 421, 422, 423, 424]

Many well-developed and widely recognized optical methods of noninvasive detection of various bio-tissue conditions are known and utilized

around the globe. These innovative methods are completely non-invasive and provide rapid real-time measurement, typically taking about tens of seconds for results. Furthermore, they offer the possibility of achieving high resolution measurements, including two-dimensional and even threedimensional visualizations. The outcomes are presented in a user-friendly graphical format, which greatly facilitates the development of more accurately tailored strategies for the treatment of different diseases. Recently developed compact semiconductor lasers have significantly paved the way for the use of highly effective and reliable optical methods aimed at the detection of potentially cancerous and cancer-infected bio-tissue. Among the well-known and thoroughly developed optical methods employed in biotissue research are techniques such as optical Doppler imaging and laserinduced fluorescence. Additionally, optical spectroscopic methods based on advanced wave-front interference and biophotonics have also recently been developed. These optical methods have found vital applications in the treatment and prevention of several serious diseases, including complications arising from diabetes mellitus, various diabetes-associated skin problems, early-stage oncology, dental caries, and a range of cardiovascular diseases, among others. These advancements in technology demonstrate the immense potential of optical techniques in improving health outcomes and understanding complex medical conditions [425, 426, 427, 428, 429].

The integration of a diverse range of complementary biophotonic techniques into free-standing portable devices, while simultaneously combining these techniques with sophisticated and advanced algorithms designed for big data generation, processing, and comprehensive analysis, is significantly paving the way to yet another remarkable technological revolution. This development represents a drastic and transformative change in the fields of biomedical research and diagnostics that cannot be overlooked. In this thorough review, the current status of laser technology, which is being competitively applied across various aspects of the biomedical field, is outlined in detail. The review focuses on a variety of available approaches and highlights the many commercially available biophotonic devices that are at the forefront of innovation. Furthermore, it delves deep into the advancement of compact solid-state lasers, fiber-optic technology, and semiconductor diode lasers. It also takes into consideration various design-in options that allow for the efficient production of compact, high-power fiber lasers. Additionally, the review addresses the significance of start-to-scale digital micromirror array lasers and low-cost, integrated nanolasers, which are critical for extending the biomedically appropriate spectral range of these technologies [430, 431, 432, 433, 434, 435].

### 9.3 Emerging trends in nanomedicine

Nanomedicine is a discipline that emerged in the late 1990s, composed of a set of engineering tools and techniques used for conducting fundamental and applied research on very small structures (1–100 nm) of natural or synthetic origin applicable to medicine. Nanomedicine is one of the fastest growing areas of research, development, and commercialization in the biological sciences, with great potential to revolutionize the field of medicine. Nanotechnology encompasses recent advances in the characteristics of scale and several equilibrium properties on both nano-and micrometric configurations. Nanotechnology spans a wide range of applications: electronics, photonics, magnetics, mechanics, optics, textiles, safety, cleaning, and consumer products [271, 436, 92].

It has a potential impact on medicine that is truly immeasurable and significant. Nanotechnology encompasses a wide array of novel materials, sophisticated devices, advanced methods, or intricate systems that have been newly engineered at the astonishingly small nanometric scale, specifically ranging from 10-9 to 10-11 meters. Within this expansive field, nanomedicine is regarded as a vital subset of nanotechnology that directly addresses the application of innovative nanotechnology principles to the realm of medicine. Nanomedicine is presently defined in very broad and inclusive terms, covering numerous applications of specialized materials, cutting-edge devices, or complex systems that are capable of accurately controlling the intricate biology of the human body or therapeutically modulating it effectively at the nano-scale. The promise of nanomedicine is profound; it is poised to effect a radical transformation in the prevention, timely diagnosis, and/or effective treatment of various diseases. Moreover, it enhances the application of the scientific method to actively induce pharmacological effects, achieving significant therapeutic objectives that can be utilized in day-to-day practice within the offices of doctors, pharmacists, dentists, surgeons, and in clinical analysis laboratories. The field of nanomedicine encompasses a highly interdisciplinary, multiscale discipline that spans a wide range of societal impacts, extending from the molecular level to the macroscopic level, and integrating an extensive variety of Physical Sciences. These include Medical Physics, Nuclear Physics, Biophysics, Biochemistry, and several methodological approaches that place a strong emphasis on technology, all while involving essential aspects such as advanced medical imaging and innovative treatment devices, along with cutting-edge delivery methods. Furthermore, it fosters the development of advanced and smart therapeutic structures that operate effectively at macro, micro, or nanometric scales [437, 271, 281, 438, 92, 439]

# Chapter - 10

### **Conclusion**

The analysis of biomedical tasks is a continuous task for professional specialists in fields such as physics, dendrology, veterinary, and human medicine. Development scientists from many medical-theoretical, experimental, and applied disciplines can look forward to gaining practical experience and information on the assignment-oriented use of high-intense cosmic phenomena, which treatatively directly affect human life. From this model, it can be seen, for example, that due to the local high-intensity X-ray photoabsorption, a harmful ricochet – energetic electron, can be theoretically calculated within 1-5 µm in nanometers. Further directions of this energetic electron can be mapped in suitable tissues, blood, and bioliquids, and the ionization and further chemical processes around it can be looked at. To see the required range of damages, healing, and equilibrium times of realistic actions, the research and development time of (combined) coherent biomedical and analytic applications widens from years to decades. However, unique macro-quartz crystals with a large enough surface (up to tens of cm2) to trap cosmic phenomena in a nanomedicine-type solid-state detector can be manufactured taking advantage of programmed crystalsenriched media. Applications of studying charged particles by silicon or laser-based optical traps can provide pathways of permanent mass-analysis for commercial use in a viable view of time.

A substantial transition from basic knowledge of the complex flux field to biology can even take a scientific life. Thus, many professionals will work but from the outside of pure biomedical research, like humanity mass projects in exploration, mines, and printings in other social sectors. The other end of this time window can be taken by the success of exploratory applied good practice got in this project of collectives and health-science education on the continent. Nevertheless, these initial studies on the possibilities of examination, prognosis, and treatment of maladies in man and domestic animals offer much more than X-ray or gamma photon maps; they will pass heavy, charged, particle map model descriptions behind levels not foreseen in imagination applied to human systems.

#### References

- J. A. Malik, S. Ahmed, A. Mir, M. Shinde, O. Bender, et al., "The SARS-CoV-2 mutations versus vaccine effectiveness: New opportunities to new challenges," \*Journal of Infection and Disease\*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 2. F. Guenl, A. Mecate-Zambrano, S. Rehlaender, S. Hinse, "Shooting at a moving target effectiveness and emerging challenges for sars-cov-2 vaccine development," Vaccines, vol. 2021. mdpi.com
- 3. J. L. Golob, N. Lugogo, A. S. Lauring, and A. S. Lok, "SARS-CoV-2 vaccines: a triumph of science and collaboration," JCI insight, 2021. nih.gov
- 4. J. S. Tregoning, K. E. Flight, S. L. Higham, Z. Wang, *et al.*, "Progress of the COVID-19 vaccine effort: viruses, vaccines and variants versus efficacy, effectiveness and escape," \*Nature Reviews\*, vol. 21, no. 1, pp. 1-16, 2021. nature.com
- 5. TM Karpiński and M Ożarowski, "The 2020 race towards SARS-CoV-2 specific vaccines," 2021. nih.gov
- 6. W. Zhou and W. Wang, "Fast-spreading SARS-CoV-2 variants: challenges to and new design strategies of COVID-19 vaccines," Signal transduction and targeted therapy, 2021. nature.com
- 7. Y. Dong, T. Dai, B. Wang, L. Zhang, and L. H. Zeng, "The way of SARS-CoV-2 vaccine development: success and challenges," Signal Transduction and Targeted Therapy, vol. 6, no. 1, 2021. nature.com
- 8. A. Awadasseid, Y. Wu, Y. Tanaka, "Current advances in the development of SARS-CoV-2 vaccines," \*International Journal of...\*, 2021. nih.gov
- 9. W. Gong, S. Parkkila, X. Wu, "SARS-CoV-2 variants and COVID-19 vaccines: Current challenges and future strategies," \*International Reviews of Immunology\*, vol. 42, no. 3, pp. 123-135, 2023. tandfonline.com
- R. Noor, "... on the effectivity of the current COVID-19 drugs and vaccines: are they really working against the severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2) ...," Current Clinical Microbiology Reports, 2021. springer.com

- 11. J. Wang, "New strategy for COVID-19 vaccination: targeting the receptor-binding domain of the SARS-CoV-2 spike protein," Cellular & Molecular Immunology, 2021. nature.com
- 12. X. Xia, "Domains and functions of spike protein in Sars-Cov-2 in the context of vaccine design," Viruses, 2021. mdpi.com
- X. Guan, Y. Yang, and L. Du, "Advances in SARS-CoV-2 receptorbinding domain-based COVID-19 vaccines," Expert review of vaccines, 2023. tandfonline.com
- 14. Y. F. Kang, C. Sun, Z. Zhuang, R. Y. Yuan, Q. Zheng, J. P. Li, et al., "Rapid development of SARS-CoV-2 spike protein receptor-binding domain self-assembled nanoparticle vaccine candidates," \*ACS Publications\*, 2021. acs.org
- 15. Y. Nitahara, Y. Nakagama, N. Kaku, et al., "High-resolution linear epitope mapping of the receptor binding domain of SARS-CoV-2 spike protein in COVID-19 mRNA vaccine recipients," \*Microbiology\*, 2021. asm.org
- 16. B. Liu, Y. Yin, Y. Liu, T. Wang, P. Sun, Y. Ou, X. Gong, "A vaccine based on the receptor-binding domain of the spike protein expressed in glycoengineered Pichia pastoris targeting SARS-CoV-2 stimulates ...," Engineering, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 17. C. Kim, D. K. Ryu, J. Lee, Y. I. Kim, J. M. Seo, Y. G. Kim, "A therapeutic neutralizing antibody targeting receptor binding domain of SARS-CoV-2 spike protein," \*Nature\*, vol. 2021. nature.com
- M. Ahmadi, "Novel radiation sensors based on bio/nanomaterials," 2013. [PDF]
- 19. K. Apte and S. Bhide, "Basics of radiation," Advanced radiation shielding materials, 2024. [HTML]
- 20. J. Stöhr, "The nature of X-rays and their interactions with matter," 2023. [HTML]
- 21. W. Bras, D. A. A. Myles, and R. Felici, "When x-rays alter the course of your experiments," \*Journal of Physics: Condensed Matter\*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. osti.gov
- 22. M. Vollmer, "Physics of the electromagnetic spectrum," Electromagnetic technologies in food science, 2021. [HTML]
- 23. N. Karmaker, K. M. Maraz, F. Islam, "Fundamental characteristics and

- application of radiation," GSC Advanced Research, vol. 2021. researchgate.net
- P. Sharma, A. P. Venugopal, P. P. Sutar, H. Xiao, "Mechanism of microbial spore inactivation through electromagnetic radiations: A review," Journal of Future..., 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 25. E. L. Irede, O. R. Aworinde, O. K. Lekan, and others, "Medical imaging: a critical review on X-ray imaging for the detection of infection," Biomedical Materials & Engineering, vol. 2024, Springer. researchgate.net
- 26. S. L. Kitson, "Modern Medical Imaging and Radiation Therapy," Cyber Security Big Data AI. Open Med Science, 2024. openmedscience.com
- 27. S. Hussain, I. Mubeen, N. Ullah, "Modern diagnostic imaging technique applications and risk factors in the medical field: a review," BioMed Research, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. wiley.com
- 28. A. Nazir, A. Hussain, M. Singh, and A. Assad, "Deep learning in medicine: advancing healthcare with intelligent solutions and the future of holography imaging in early diagnosis," Multimedia Tools and Applications, 2025. [HTML]
- 29. T. Rahman, A. Khandakar, Y. Qiblawey, A. Tahir, "Exploring the effect of image enhancement techniques on COVID-19 detection using chest X-ray images," \*Biology and Medicine\*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. nih.gov
- Z. Mustafa and H. Nsour, "Using computer vision techniques to automatically detect abnormalities in chest X-rays," Diagnostics, 2023. mdpi.com
- 31. X. Li, L. Zhang, J. Yang, and F. Teng, "Role of artificial intelligence in medical image analysis: A review of current trends and future directions," \*Journal of Medical and Biological Engineering\*, 2024. [HTML]
- 32. T. Beyer, D. L. Bailey, U. J. Birk, I. Buvat, C. Catana, *et al.*, "Medical physics and imaging—A timely perspective," Frontiers in..., vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 33. C. Sanchez-Cano, R. A. Alvarez-Puebla, J. M. Abendroth, T. Beck *et al.*, "X-ray-Based Techniques to Study the Nano–Bio Interface," 2021. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 34. P. Sharma, M. R. Hasan, M. Khanuja, R. Rawal, and others, "Aptamer-based silver nanoparticle decorated paper platform for electrochemical

- detection ovarian cancer biomarker PDGF," \*Materials Chemistry and Physics\*, vol. XX, pp. YY-ZZ, 2023. [HTML]
- 35. J. Walther, J. Golde, M. Albrecht, B. C. Quirk, "A handheld fiber-optic probe to enable optical coherence tomography of oral soft tissue," IEEE Transactions, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. ieee.org
- 36. Y. Gruda, "Optical coherence tomography for *in vivo* imaging of human oral lichen planus," core.ac.uk, core.ac.uk
- 37. B. F. E. Matarèse and A. Purushotham, "Quantum Oncology," Quantum Reports, 2025. mdpi.com
- 38. A. K. Banerjee, "Wilhelm Conrad Röntgen-the discoverer of x-rays," bshr.org.uk, bshr.org.uk
- 39. K. Martins, "Discovery of X-Rays," World History, 2024. worldhistory.org
- 40. U. Busch, "Claims of priority—The scientific path to the discovery of X-rays," Zeitschrift für Medizinische Physik, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 41. J. Rabe, U. Busch, M. Michels, "Wilhelm Conrad Röntgen's Strasbourg Years (1872–1879): WC Röntgen–Two Decades before the Discovery of X-rays (with GPX Track 'Röntgen in Strasbourg')," RöFo-Fortschritte auf Radiologie, vol. 2025. thieme-connect.com
- 42. U. Busch, "A new kind of rays: the discovery and exploration of X-rays," Wilhelm Conrad Röntgen: A Shining Life for Science, 2021. [HTML]
- 43. E. Stanik, T. Döhring, K. Schreiber, "The Röntgen Medal: honouring x-ray excellence," EUV and X-ray, 2023. [HTML]
- 44. I. Obodovskiy, "X-ray Mania," in \*From Radio-phobia to Radio-euphoria: Low Radiation ...\*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]
- 45. A. Thomas, "Invisible Light: The Remarkable Story of Radiology," 2022. [HTML]
- 46. L. Johnson and M. Mulligan, "History of Bone Tumor Pathology and Radiology," 2024. [HTML]
- 47. D. Kardamakis, S. Baatout, M. Bourguignon, N. Foray, "History of radiation biology," Radiobiology, vol. 2023, Springer, 2023. springer.com
- 48. D. Serwer, "Establishment of International Norms, 1922–40," in \*Strengthening International Regimes: The Case of ...\*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]

- 49. J. L. Wells, "Care Innovation in Pediatric Radiology," in \*A Clinical Lens on Pediatric Engineering: Pioneering ... \*, 2025. [HTML]
- 50. X. Ou, X. Chen, X. Xu, L. Xie, X. Chen, Z. Hong, and H. Bai, "Recent development in x-ray imaging technology: Future and challenges," \*Research\*, vol. 2021, 2021. science.org
- P. M. Khaniabadi, N. M. Ahmed, M. A. Dheyab, A. A. Aziz, "Structure, morphology and absorption characteristics of gold nanoparticles produced via PLAL method: Role of low energy X-ray dosage," Surfaces and Interfaces, vol. 21, pp. 1-10, 2021. [HTML]
- 52. J. Yamada, S. Matsuyama, I. Inoue, T. Osaka, T. Inoue, *et al.*, "Extreme focusing of hard X-ray free-electron laser pulses enables 7 nm focus width and 10<sup>2</sup>2 W cm<sup>2</sup> intensity," Nature, 2024. [HTML]
- 53. Z. Gadzhimagomedova, V. Polyakov, I. Pankin, "BaGdF5 Nanophosphors Doped with Different Concentrations of Eu3+ for Application in X-ray Photodynamic Therapy," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 54. M. Bogar, Y. Yakovlev, J. Nováková, A. M. Darabut, "A small angle X-ray scattering approach for investigating fuel cell catalyst degradation for both ex situ and in operando analyses," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 55. Y. Zhan, P. Cai, X. Pu, Q. Ai, J. Si, X. Yao, G. Bai, "Exceptional optical performance of the zero-dimensional hybrid cuprous halide ETPA2Cu2I4 as an X-ray scintillator," Inorganic Chemistry, 2024. [HTML]
- 56. T. Li, D. Zhao, L. Li, Y. Meng, Y. Xie, D. Feng, F. Wu, "Unraveling fluorescent mechanism of biomass-sourced carbon dots based on three major components: Cellulose, lignin, and protein," Bioresource Technology, vol. 2024, Elsevier. ssrn.com
- 57. JGJ Lftta, ANAA Zahra, AHJ Ashour, "X-Rays and Their Uses on The Human Body," Current Clinical and ..., 2024. visionpublisher.info
- 58. X. Fang, J. Cang, Q. Wu, H. Feng, and M. Zeng, "New method for optimizing the detection of low-energy soft X-rays (200–300 eV) in a CMOS detector," Instruments and Methods in Physics Research, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2024. [HTML]
- 59. E. Rubio, "Understanding and Using X-rays," 2021. [HTML]
- 60. C. Tian, M. Yu, L. Shan, F. Wu, B. Bi, Q. Zhang, "Diagnosis of

- indirectly driven double shell targets with point-projection hard x-ray radiography," Matter and Radiation, 2024. aip.org
- 61. V. Tatischeff and P. Laurent, "Hard X-ray and gamma-ray detectors," arXiv preprint arXiv:2411.11987, 2024. [PDF]
- 62. G. R. Castro and J. R. Zuazo, "Hard X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy and X-ray diffraction techniques: non-destructive compositional, electronic, chemical and structural in-depth characterization in ...,"

  Non-Destructive Material Characterization Methods, 2024. [HTML]
- 63. H. Toda and H. Toda, "Fundamentals of X-Ray Imaging," X-Ray CT: Hardware and Software Techniques, 2021. [HTML]
- 64. X. Ou, X. Qin, B. Huang, J. Zan, Q. Wu, Z. Hong, and L. Xie, "High-resolution X-ray luminescence extension imaging," Nature, 2021. polyu.edu.hk
- 65. C. Sanchez-Cano, R. A. Alvarez-Puebla, J. M. Abendroth, *et al.*, "X-ray-based techniques to study the nano-bio interface," ACS Publications, 2021. acs.org
- 66. H. Wu, Y. Ge, G. Niu, and J. Tang, "Metal halide perovskites for X-ray detection and imaging," Matter, 2021. cell.com
- 67. P. J. Withers, C. Bouman, S. Carmignato, *et al.*, "X-ray computed tomography," \*Nature Reviews Methods\*, 2021. hal.science
- 68. A. Piovesan and V. Vancauwenberghe, "X-ray computed tomography for 3D plant imaging," Trends in Plant, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- 69. Y. Wu, J. Feng, Z. Yang, Y. Liu *et al.*, "Halide perovskite: a promising candidate for next- generation X- ray detectors," Advanced Science, 2023. wiley.com
- 70. B. Wang, L. Zhang, L. Wen, and X. Liu, "Towards real-world prohibited item detection: A large-scale x-ray benchmark," \*Proceedings of the IEEE\*, 2021. thecvf.com
- 71. P. Rez, "Coherent and incoherent imaging of biological specimens with electrons and X-rays," Ultramicroscopy, 2021. [HTML]
- 72. H. Almalki, M. W. Marashdeh, M. Alsuhybani, "Evaluation of radiation attenuation properties of breast equivalent phantom material made of gelatin material in mammographic X-ray energies," Journal of Radiation, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 73. M. J. Pushie, N. J. Sylvain, H. Hou, and M. J. Hackett, "X-ray

- fluorescence microscopy methods for biological tissues," Metallomics, vol. 14, no. 2, pp. 123-135, 2022. oup.com
- 74. R. Sagar, A. Mahmood, A. Younis, and others, "Soft X- ray Detectors Based on SnS Nanosheets for the Water Window Region," \*Advanced Functional Materials\*, vol. 2022. wiley.com
- 75. A. Vaddi, P. Parasher, and S. Khurana, "Beyond X-Rays: Unveiling the Future of Dental Diagnosis with Dental Magnetic Resonance Imaging," Diagnostics, 2025. mdpi.com
- Q. Liu, M. Sun, X. Sun, B. Liu, M. Ostadhassan, "Pore network characterization of shale reservoirs through state-of-the-art X-ray computed tomography: A review," Gas Science and Technology, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 77. K. R. Sneha and G. S. Sailaja, "Intrinsically radiopaque biomaterial assortments: a short review on the physical principles, X-ray imageability, and state-of-the-art developments," Journal of Materials Chemistry B, 2021. [HTML]
- 78. M. Piana, A. G. Emslie, A. M. Massone, and B. R. Dennis, "Hard X-ray Imaging of Solar Flares," 2022. [HTML]
- 79. Q. An, W. Chen, and W. Shao, "A deep convolutional neural network for pneumonia detection in X-ray images with attention ensemble," Diagnostics, 2024. mdpi.com
- 80. G. Insero, F. Fusi, and G. Romano, "The safe use of lasers in biomedicine: Principles of laser-matter interaction," \*Journal of Public Health\*, 2023. sagepub.com
- 81. P. Sarbadhikary, B. P. George, and H. Abrahamse, "Paradigm shift in future biophotonics for imaging and therapy: Miniature living lasers to cellular scale optoelectronics," Theranostics, 2022. nih.gov
- 82. I. Meglinski, A. Dunn, T. Durduran, D. Postnov, "Dynamic light scattering in biomedical applications: feature issue introduction," \*Biomedical Optics\*, 2024. optica.org
- 83. T. Li, V. Cheburkanov, V. V. Yakovlev, G. S. Agarwal, "Harnessing quantum light for microscopic biomechanical imaging of cells and tissues," \*Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences\*, 2024. pnas.org
- 84. S. Anil, B. Vikas, N. G. Thomas, and V. K. Sweety, "Biomedical imaging: Scope for future studies and applications," in \*Multimodal Biomedical Imaging\*, 2025, Springer. researchgate.net

- 85. M. Catela, "Biolaser: Concept and Applications," 2020. researchgate.net
- 86. D. Gross, "The Bio-Orthophotonic Concept of healing energy: Quantum," 2025. cisteijournal.com
- 87. A. Bahmanpour and S. M. Ghoreishian, "Electromagnetic Modulation of Cell Behavior: Unraveling the Positive Impacts in a Comprehensive Review," Annals of Biomedical, vol. 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 88. P. A. Souvestre and D. L. Pederson, "Therapeutic applications of biophotonics in space," Handbook of Space Pharmaceuticals, 2021. [HTML]
- 89. A. Tewabe, A. Abate, M. Tamrie, A. Seyfu, "Targeted drug delivery from magic bullet to nanomedicine: principles, challenges, and future perspectives," Journal of ..., vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. tandfonline.com
- 90. M. Rasool, A. Malik, S. Waquar, M. Arooj, S. Zahid, "New challenges in the use of nanomedicine in cancer therapy," Taylor & Francis, 2022. tandfonline.com
- 91. M. Zeng, D. Guo, G. Fernández-Varo, *et al.*, "The integration of nanomedicine with traditional Chinese medicine: drug delivery of natural products and other opportunities," \*Molecular\*, vol. 2022, ACS Publications. ub.edu
- S. Malik, K. Muhammad, and Y. Waheed, "Emerging applications of nanotechnology in healthcare and medicine," Molecules, 2023. mdpi.com
- 93. S. Anjum, S. Ishaque, H. Fatima, W. Farooq, C. Hano, "Emerging applications of nanotechnology in healthcare systems: Grand challenges and perspectives," \*Pharmaceuticals\*, vol. 14, no. 3, 2021. mdpi.com
- 94. H. Zhang, S. Li, and X. Ma, "Transforming Healthcare with Nanomedicine: A SWOT Analysis of Drug Delivery Innovation," Drug Design, tandfonline.com
- 95. F. Rehan, M. Zhang, J. Fang, and K. Greish, "Therapeutic applications of nanomedicine: recent developments and future perspectives," Molecules, 2024. mdpi.com
- 96. W. H. De Jong, R. E. Geertsma, and G. Borchard, "Regulatory safety evaluation of nanomedical products: key issues to refine," \*Drug Delivery and Translational Research\*, vol. 12, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2022. springer.com

- 97. S. Alzola-Aldamizetxebarria, L. Fernández-Méndez, D. Padro, J. Ruíz-Cabello *et al.*, "A Comprehensive Introduction to Magnetic Resonance Imaging Relaxometry and Contrast Agents," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 98. M. Ramesh, R. Janani, C. Deepa, and L. Rajeshkumar, "Nanotechnology-enabled biosensors: a review of fundamentals, design principles, materials, and applications," Biosensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 99. A.I. Barbosa, R. Rebelo, and R.L. Reis, "Current nanotechnology advances in diagnostic biosensors," \*Medical Devices & Diagnostics\*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 100.O. B. Daramola, R. K. Omole, I. V. Akinwale, and others, "Bioreceptors functionalized nanoparticles: a resourceful sensing and colorimetric detection tool for pathogenic bacteria and microbial biomolecules," Nanotechnology, vol. 2022, pp. 1-10, 2022. frontiersin.org
- 101.H., H. F. Wu, and S. K. Kailasa, "Recent advances in nanomaterials-based optical sensors for detection of various biomarkers (inorganic species, organic and biomolecules)," Luminescence, 2023. [HTML]
- 102.S. Sargazi, I. Fatima, and M. H. Kiani, "Fluorescent-based nanosensors for selective detection of a wide range of biological macromolecules: A comprehensive review," \*International Journal of ...\*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 103.S. S. Mughal, "Role of silver nanoparticles in colorimetric detection of biomolecules," Authorea Preprints, 2022. authorea.com
- 104.G. F. Combes, A. M. Vučković, M. Perić Bakulić, R. Antoine, et al., "Nanotechnology in tumor biomarker detection: the potential of liganded nanoclusters as nonlinear optical contrast agents for molecular diagnostics of cancer," Cancers, vol. 13, no. 12, 2021. mdpi.com
- 105.M. Mukhtar, S. Sargazi, M. Barani, H. Madry, A. Rahdar, "Application of nanotechnology for sensitive detection of low-abundance singlenucleotide variations in genomic DNA: a review," Nanomaterials, vol. 11, no. 3, 2021. mdpi.com
- 106.S. K. M Shadekul Islam, M. D. Abdullah Al Nasim, I. Hossain, D. Md Azim Ullah *et al.*, "Introduction of Medical Imaging Modalities," 2023. [PDF]
- 107.R. L. M. Mostard and R. Yadav, "Conventional and nuclear imaging techniques," in \*Sarcoidosis (ERS Monograph)\*, Sheffield, 2022. [HTML]

- 108.R. Dagher, M. Gad, P. da Silva de Santana, *et al.*, "Umbrella review and network meta-analysis of diagnostic imaging test accuracy studies in differentiating between brain tumor progression versus pseudoprogression," \*Journal of Neuro\*, vol. 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 109.H. Erdagli, D. U. Ozsahin, and B. Uzun, "Perfusion imaging techniques and artificial intelligence (AI) tools in coronary artery disease (CAD) diagnosis through multi-criteria decision-making method," Cardiovascular Diagnosis, 2024. nih.gov
- 110.A. Peix, C. T. Mesquita, C. Gutiérrez, et al., "Current status of nuclear cardiology practice in Latin America and the Caribbean, in the era of multimodality cardiac imaging approach: 2022 update," Nuclear Medicine, vol. 2022. lww.com
- 111.M. Totzeck, N. Aide, J. Bauersachs, J. Bucerius, "... medicine in the assessment and prevention of cancer therapy-related cardiotoxicity: prospects and proposal of use by the European Association of Nuclear Medicine ...," \*Journal of Nuclear Medicine and ...\*, vol. 2023, Springer.springer.com
- 112.G. S. Buijs, A. C. Kooijenga, Q. G. H. Rikken, "..., with low certainty of evidence, the highest diagnostic accuracy for aseptic knee arthroplasty loosening: A systematic comparative diagnostic test review and meta ...," Knee Surgery, 2024. wiley.com
- 113.C. E. Rochitte and A. B. Pacheco, "Non-nuclear Cardiac Imaging Modalities: CT and MRI," in \*Nuclear Cardiology: Basic and Advanced\*, Springer, 2021. [HTML]
- 114.IS Golub, A. Thummala, T. Morad, J. Dhaliwal, "Artificial intelligence in nuclear cardiac imaging: novel advances, emerging techniques, and recent clinical trials," \*Journal of Clinical Medicine\*, 2025. mdpi.com
- 115.A. Guilherme Buzanich, "Recent developments of X- ray absorption spectroscopy as analytical tool for biological and biomedical applications," X- Ray Spectrometry, 2022. wiley.com
- 116.E. A. Shirshin, B. P. Yakimov, G. S. Budylin, "Biomedical photonics for intraoperative diagnostics: review of capabilities and clinical applications," Moscow University, 2022. researchgate.net
- 117.T. Staufer and F. Grüner, "Review of development and recent advances in biomedical X-ray fluorescence imaging," International Journal of Molecular Sciences, 2023. mdpi.com

- 118.R. Malviya, D. U. Meenakshi, and P. Goyal, "Laser Therapy in Healthcare: Advances in Diagnosis and Treatment," 2024. [HTML]
- 119.H. Chamkouri, J. Si, P. Chen, C. Niu *et al.*, "Biomedical optics and photonics for advanced clinical technologies," Optics & Laser Technology, 2024. [HTML]
- 120.P. Mosel, J. Düsing, S. Johannesmeier, "X-ray generation by fs-laser processing of biological material," \*Biomedical Optics\*, 2023. optica.org
- 121.K. Zhu, J. Wang, Z. Wang, Q. Chen, *et al.*, "Ultrasound- Activated Theranostic Materials and Their Bioapplications," Angewandte Chemie, 2025. [HTML]
- 122.S. Sadiq, S. Khan, I. Khan, A. Khan, M. Humayun, and P. Wu, "A critical review on metal-organic frameworks (MOFs) based nanomaterials for biomedical applications: Designing, recent trends, challenges, and prospects," Heliyon, 2024. cell.com
- 123.A. Abubakr, A. I. Othman, and T. M. Ewedah, "The applications of radioisotopes in modern medicine: a review of diagnostic, therapeutic, and research advancements," ERU Research Journal, 2024. ekb.eg
- 124.A. Dash and T. Das, "Production of therapeutic radionuclides for bone-seeking radiopharmaceuticals to meet clinical exigency and academic research," Journal of Radioanalytical and Nuclear Chemistry, 2025. springer.com
- 125.S. H. Sanada and R. N. Shrestha, "Advancements in radiochemistry and nuclear methods of analysis for safer and sustainable applications," pdfs.semanticscholar.org, semanticscholar.org
- 126.K. G. W. Inn, J. G. Ezold, A. Kimberlin, and P. Benny, "A Brief Overview of Radiochemistry," in \*Science Applications\*, 2021, ACS Publications. [HTML]
- 127.M. F. L'Annunziata, "Radioactivity: History, science, vital uses and ominous peril," 2022. [HTML]
- 128.BSM Singh, D. Singh, and N.K. Dhal, "Enhanced phytoremediation strategy for sustainable management of heavy metals and radionuclides," Case Studies in Chemical and Environmental Engineering, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 129.A. Ghareeb, A. Fouda, R. M. Kishk, and W. M. El Kazzaz, "Unlocking the potential of titanium dioxide nanoparticles: an insight into green

- synthesis, optimizations, characterizations, and multifunctional applications," Microbial Cell Factories, 2024. springer.com
- 130.I. Rafecas Jorba, "Radiation protection education and training in several ionising radiation applications," 2012. [PDF]
- 131.Y. Wei and X. Wang, "Biological effects of rotating magnetic field: A review from 1969 to 2021," Progress in biophysics and molecular biology, 2023. [HTML]
- 132.D. Schuermann and M. Mevissen, "Manmade electromagnetic fields and oxidative stress biological effects and consequences for health," International journal of molecular sciences, 2021. mdpi.com
- 133.H. Zadeh-Haghighi and C. Simon, "Magnetic field effects in biology from the perspective of the radical pair mechanism," \*Journal of the Royal Society\*, vol. 2022. royalsocietypublishing.org
- 134.W. Li, H. Ma, R. He, X. Ren *et al.*, "Prospects and application of ultrasound and magnetic fields in the fermentation of rare edible fungi," Ultrasonics Sonochemistry, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 135.H. Lv, J. Liu, C. Zhen, Y. Wang, Y. Wei, and W. Ren, "Magnetic fields as a potential therapy for diabetic wounds based on animal experiments and clinical trials," \*Cell\*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 136.F. Sharifianjazi, M. Irani, A. Esmaeilkhanian, *et al.*, "Polymer incorporated magnetic nanoparticles: Applications for magnetoresponsive targeted drug delivery," \*Materials Science and Engineering\*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 137.F. Laganà, L. Bibbò, S. Calcagno, D. De Carlo, "Smart electronic device-based monitoring of SAR and temperature variations in indoor human tissue interaction," \*Applied Sciences\*, 2025. mdpi.com
- 138.K. S. Litvinova, I. E. Rafailov, A. V. Dunaev, S. G. Sokolovski *et al.*, "Non-invasive biomedical research and diagnostics enabled by innovative compact lasers," 2017. [PDF]
- 139.Z. He, P. Wang, and X. Ye, "Novel endoscopic optical diagnostic technologies in medical trial research: recent advancements and future prospects," BioMedical Engineering OnLine, 2021. springer.com
- 140.B. C. Wilson, "Medical Diagnostics," Handbook of Laser Technology and Applications, 2021. [HTML]
- 141.N. Parvin, S. W. Joo, J. H. Jung, and T. K. Mandal, "Innovative Micro-

- and Nano-Architectures in Biomedical Engineering for Therapeutic and Diagnostic Applications," Micromachines, 2025. mdpi.com
- 142.H. J. Jawad and A. F. Sultan, "Review recent developments in high-power diode lasers for biomedical applications," Journal of Optics, 2024. [HTML]
- 143.B. A. Taha, I. A. Al-Tahar, A. J. Addie, A. B. Mahdi, *et al.*, "Nanophotonic catheters: A lens into the body for biosensing and biomedical imaging," \*Applied Materials\*, vol. 2024, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 144.H. Zhang, Y. Zhang, L. Li, J. Hu *et al.*, "Optofluidic lasers and their applications in biochemical sensing," Lab on a Chip, 2023. [HTML]
- 145.N. Thanjavur, L. Bugude, and Y. J. Kim, "Integration of Functional Materials in Photonic and Optoelectronic Technologies for Advanced Medical Diagnostics," Biosensors, 2025. mdpi.com
- 146.H. O. DURMUŞ, "FUNDAMENTALS OF MEDICAL LASER TECHNOLOGY AND ITS VARIOUS MEDICAL APPLICATIONS," Current Research in, 2024. google.com
- 147.D. S. Mehta, A. Butola, and V. Singh, "Quantitative Phase Microscopy and Tomography: Techniques using partially spatially coherent monochromatic light," 2022. [HTML]
- 148.V. Kumar, A. K. Dubey, M. Gupta, V. Singh, A. Butola, "Speckle noise reduction strategies in laser-based projection imaging, fluorescence microscopy, and digital holography with uniform illumination, improved image ...," Optics & Laser Engineering, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 149.H. Lu, O. Alkhazragi, Y. Wang, N. Almaymoni, W. Yan, "Low-coherence semiconductor light sources: devices and applications," npj, 2024. nature.com
- 150.R. Mehra and S. Kumar, "A review on lasers assisted machining methods-types, mode of operations, comparison and applications," CGC International Journal of Contemporary, 2022. archive.org
- 151.D. J. Biswas, "Continuous and Pulsed Lasers," in \*A Beginner's Guide to Lasers and Their Applications\*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]
- 152.D. J. Biswas, "Different Types of Lasers," in \*... to Lasers and Their Applications, Part 1: Insights into ...\*, 2023, Springer. [HTML]

- 153.A. Farooq, A. B. S. Alquaity, M. Raza, and E. F. Nasir, "Laser sensors for energy systems and process industries: Perspectives and directions,"\*Progress in Energy and Combustion Science\*, vol. 89, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 154.D. J. Biswas, "Cavity and Its Bearing on the Operation of Lasers," in \*A Beginner's Guide to Lasers and Their Applications\*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]
- 155.Y. Liu and Y. Ma, "Advances in multipass cell for absorption spectroscopy-based trace gas sensing technology," Chinese Optics Letters, 2023. researching.cn
- 156.K. Panajotov, "VCSELs with Stable Linear Polarization Emission Induced by Dielectric Columnar Thin Film Mirrors," Photonics, 2024. mdpi.com
- 157.J. F. Algorri, J. M. López-Higuera, L. Rodríguez-Cobo, *et al.*, "Advanced light source technologies for photodynamic therapy of skin cancer lesions," Pharmaceutics, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 158.W. Gao, T. Wang, J. Xu, P. Zeng, W. Zhang, and Y. Yao, "Robust and flexible random lasers using perovskite quantum dots coated nickel foam for speckle- free laser imaging," \*Small\*, vol. 17, no. 1, 2021. polyu.edu.hk
- 159.H. Zhang, L. Zhao, J. Jiang, J. Zheng, L. Yang, Y. Li, *et al.*, "Multiplexed nanomaterial-assisted laser desorption/ionization for pancancer diagnosis and classification," \*Nature\*, vol. 2022. nature.com
- 160.H. Omer, "Radiobiological effects and medical applications of nonionizing radiation," Saudi journal of biological sciences, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 161.M. F. De Oliveira and D. S. Johnson, "Low-intensity LASER and LED (photobiomodulation therapy) for pain control of the most common musculoskeletal conditions," \*Journal of Medicine\*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 162.H. Wu, L. Wang, S. Zhang, C. L. Wu, C. H. Zhang, and X. Y. Sun, "Tribological properties and sulfuric acid corrosion resistance of laser clad CoCrFeNi high entropy alloy coatings with different types of TiC reinforcement," \*Tribology\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 163.M. Salmi, "Additive manufacturing processes in medical applications," Materials, 2021. mdpi.com
- 164.A. M. El-Khawaga and A. Zidan, "Preparation methods of different

- nanomaterials for various potential applications: A review," Journal of Molecular, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 165.J. Zhu, X. Huang, and W. Song, "Physical and chemical sensors on the basis of laser-induced graphene: mechanisms, applications, and perspectives," ACS nano, 2021. [HTML]
- 166.S. H. Um, S. W. Hwang, C. P. Grigoropoulos, *et al.*, "Recent advances in selective laser–material interaction for biomedical device applications," \*Applied Physics\*, vol. 2022. [HTML]
- 167.X. Chen, H. Lindley-Hatcher, R. I. Stantchev, "Terahertz (THz) biophotonics technology: Instrumentation, techniques, and biomedical applications," \*Chemical Physics\*, vol. 2022. aip.org
- 168.G. Pasparakis, "Recent developments in the use of gold and silver nanoparticles in biomedicine," Wiley Interdisciplinary Reviews: Nanomedicine and Nanobiotechnology, vol. 14, no. 1, 2022. wiley.com
- 169.R. Liu, Y. Peng, L. Lu, S. Peng, T. Chen, "Near-infrared light-triggered nano-prodrug for cancer gas therapy," \*Journal of ...\*, 2021. springer.com
- 170.S. Parker, M. Cronshaw, E. Anagnostaki, V. Mylona *et al.*, "Current Concepts of Laser–Oral Tissue Interaction," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 171.R. A. Convissar, "Principles and Practice of Laser Dentistry-E-Book: Principles and Practice of Laser Dentistry-E-Book," 2022. [HTML]
- 172.L. Sachelarie, R. Cristea, E. Burlui, and L. L. Hurjui, "Laser Technology in Dentistry: From Clinical Applications to Future Innovations," Dentistry Journal, 2024. mdpi.com
- 173.J. Arnabat-Dominguez and A. Del Vecchio, "Laser dentistry in daily practice during the COVID-19 pandemic: Benefits, risks and recommendations for safe treatments," Advances in Clinical, 2021. uniroma1.it
- 174.D. J. Coluzzi, Z. Al Timimi, and M. Saleem, "Digitization and dental lasers," in \*... in dentistry: Clinical applications\*, 2021, Springer. [HTML]
- 175.Q. Huang, Z. Li, P. Lyu, X. Zhou *et al.*, "Current applications and future directions of lasers in endodontics: a narrative review," Bioengineering, 2023. mdpi.com
- 176.A. A. de Magalhães and A. T. Santos, "Advancements in diagnostic

- methods and imaging technologies in dentistry: A literature review of emerging approaches," Journal of Clinical Medicine, 2025. nih.gov
- 177.Y. Cen, X. Huang, J. Liu, Y. Qin *et al.*, "Application of three-dimensional reconstruction technology in dentistry: a narrative review," BMC Oral Health, 2023. springer.com
- 178.I. Luchian, D. G. Budală, E. R. Baciu, and R. G. Ursu, "The involvement of photobiology in contemporary dentistry A narrative review," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2023. mdpi.com
- 179.C. M. Moysidou, C. Barberio, and R. M. Owens, "Advances in engineering human tissue models," \*Frontiers in Bioengineering\*, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 180.D. Wang and W. Rao, "Numerical simulation on thermal response of laser-irradiated biological tissues embedded with liquid metal nanoparticles," Journal of Thermal Science, 2022. magtechjournal.com
- 181.H. C. Lee, N. E. Pacheco, L. Fichera, *et al.*, "When the end effector is a laser: A review of robotics in laser surgery," \*Advanced Intelligent Systems\*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 182.S. Al-Safadi and P. Hutapea, "A study on modeling the deflection of surgical needle during insertion into multilayer tissues," \*Journal of the Mechanical Behavior of Biomedical Materials\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 183.S. Motiwale and M. S. Sacks, "Structural constitutive models for soft biological tissues and biomaterials: the role of mechanical interactions," Mechanics of Soft Materials, 2025. researchgate.net
- 184.Y. Chen, K. Wang, J. Huang, X. Li *et al.*, "An extensive evaluation of laser tissue welding and soldering biotechnologies: Recent advancements, progress, and applications," Current Research in Biotechnology, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 185.A. Mohammadi, L. Bianchi, and P. Saccomandi, "Improving Soft Tissue Laser Ablation Outcomes: A Markov Chain Monte Carlo-Based Approach," Journal of Thermal Biology, 2025. [HTML]
- 186.K. Tang, M. L. Luo, W. Zhou, L. N. Niu *et al.*, "The integration of periimplant soft tissues around zirconia abutments: challenges and strategies," Bioactive Materials, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 187.L. Bianchi, F. Cavarzan, L. Ciampitti, *et al.*, "Thermophysical and mechanical properties of biological tissues as a function of temperature:

- a systematic literature review," \*International Journal\*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. tandfonline.com
- 188. [188, 1] A. E. Abouelregal, R. A. Alharb, M. Yaylacı, *et al.*, "Analysis of temperature changes in living tissue using the modified fractional thermal conduction model under laser heat flux on the skin surface," in \*Advances in Heat and Thermodynamics\*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 189.M. Oane, M. A. Mahmood, and A. C. Popescu, "A state-of-the-art review on integral transform technique in laser-material interaction: Fourier and non-Fourier heat equations," Materials, 2021. mdpi.com
- 190.J. Lou and D. J. Mooney, "Chemical strategies to engineer hydrogels for cell culture," Nature Reviews Chemistry, 2022. [HTML]
- 191.P. Guo, Y. Wang, H. Cui, X. Yao, G. Guan, "Nano- bio- interface: Unleashing the Potential of Noble Nanometals," Small Science, 2024. wiley.com
- 192.Z. Bai, Z. Zhao, M. Tian, D. Jin, and Y. Pang, "A comprehensive review on the development and applications of narrow-linewidth lasers," Microwave and Optical Technology Letters, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 193.H. Fathi, M. Närhi, and R. Gumenyuk, "Towards ultimate high-power scaling: Coherent beam combining of fiber lasers," Photonics, 2021. mdpi.com
- 194.Z. Chang, L. Fang, V. Fedorov, C. Geiger, "Intense infrared lasers for strong-field science," Advances in Optics, vol. 2022. optica.org
- 195.Y. Chen, F. Wang, and Y. Cai, "Partially coherent light beam shaping via complex spatial coherence structure engineering," Advances in Physics: X, 2022. tandfonline.com
- 196.F. Davidson-Marquis and J. Gargiulo, "Coherent interaction of atoms with a beam of light confined in a light cage," Light: Science & Applications, vol. 10, no. 1, 2021. nature.com
- 197.Y. Wan, Z. Li, Z. Liu, Y. Yang *et al.*, "Robust speckle-free imaging using random lasers enhanced by TiN nanoparticles in complex scattering environments," Nanophotonics, 2023. degruyter.com
- 198.H. Zhang, T. Li, and X. Wang, "Highly nonlinear light-nucleus interaction," Physical Review Letters, 2024. gscaep.ac.cn
- 199.Z. Huang and L. Cao, "Quantitative phase imaging based on

- holography: trends and new perspectives," Light: Science & Applications, 2024. nature.com
- 200.Z. Cao, D. M. Harmon, R. Yang, A. Razumtcev, "Periodic photobleaching with structured illumination for diffusion imaging," \*Analytical Chemistry\*, vol. 2023, ACS Publications. nsf.gov
- 201.Y. Zhang, C. Tao, S. Luo, K. Y. Lau, and J. Zheng, "Ultra-fast optical time-domain transformation techniques," \*Nature Reviews\*, 2025. researchgate.net
- 202.R. Dai, X. Chen, N. Ouyang, and Y. Hu, "A pH-controlled synthetic route to violet, green, and orange fluorescent carbon dots for multicolor light-emitting diodes," Chemical Engineering Journal, 2022. [HTML]
- 203.L. Héliot and A. Leray, "Simple phasor-based deep neural network for fluorescence lifetime imaging microscopy," Scientific reports, 2021. nature.com
- 204.X. Guo, Z. Zhang, M. Yang, P. Bing, X. Yan, Q. Yang, "Time-frequency double domain resolving by electromagnetically induced transparency metasensors for rapid and label-free detection of cancer biomarker midkine," \*Optics and Lasers in Engineering\*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 205.F. S. Spadin, L. P. Gergely, T. Kämpfer, M. Frenz, et al., "Fluorescence lifetime imaging and phasor analysis of intracellular porphyrinic photosensitizers applied with different polymeric formulations," \*Journal of Photochemistry and Photobiology\*, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 206.L. Fang, Z. Chen, J. Dai, Y. Pan, Y. Tu, Q. Meng, "Recent Advances in Strategies to Enhance Photodynamic and Photothermal Therapy Performance of Single- Component Organic Phototherapeutic Agents," \*Advanced Materials\*, vol. 2025, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 207.D. Aebisher, S. Czech, K. Dynarowicz, M. Misiołek, "Photodynamic therapy: past, current, and future," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2024. mdpi.com
- 208.M. Olszowy, M. Nowak-Perlak, and M. Woźniak, "Current strategies in photodynamic therapy (PDT) and photodynamic diagnostics (PDD) and the future potential of nanotechnology in cancer treatment," Pharmaceutics, 2023. mdpi.com
- 209.S. Bhattacharya, B. G. Prajapati, S. Singh, and others, "... delivery for

- 5-aminolevulinic acid (5-ALA) in photodynamic therapy (PDT) for multiple cancer treatment: a critical review on biosynthesis, detection, and therapeutic ...," Journal of Cancer, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 210.S. Alizadeh Nobari and M. A. Doustvandi, "Emerging trends in quantum dot-based photosensitizers for enhanced photodynamic therapy in cancer treatment," \*Journal of ...\*, 2025. researchgate.net
- 211.S. S. Rajan and R. Chandran, "Overcoming challenges in cancer treatment: nano- enabled photodynamic therapy as a viable solution," Wiley Interdisciplinary Reviews: Nanomedicine and Nanobiotechnology, 2024. wiley.com
- 212.R. J. Alimdjanovich and S. A. Abdujamilevich, "The State of Periodontal Tissues in Athletes Engaged in Cyclic Sports," Annals of the ..., 2021. [HTML]
- 213.R. Sender, Y. Weiss, Y. Navon, I. Milo, and N. Azulay, "The total mass, number, and distribution of immune cells in the human body," \*Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences\*, vol. 2023. pnas.org
- 214.B. Kołodziejska, N. Stępień, and J. Kolmas, "The influence of strontium on bone tissue metabolism and its application in osteoporosis treatment," \*International Journal of Molecular\*, vol. 2021. mdpi.com
- 215.N. Ali, J. Katsouli, E. L. Marczylo, T. W. Gant, S. Wright, "The potential impacts of micro-and-nano plastics on various organ systems in humans," The Lancet, 2024. thelancet.com
- 216.S. Gelibter, G. Marostica, A. Mandelli, "The impact of storage on extracellular vesicles: A systematic study," \*Journal of ...\*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. wiley.com
- 217.N. J. Sylvain, M. M. Salman, M. J. Pushie, H. Hou, *et al.*, "The effects of trifluoperazine on brain edema, aquaporin-4 expression and metabolic markers during the acute phase of stroke using photothrombotic mouse model," \*Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA)\*, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 218.P. H. Kuo, T. H. Tang, S. H. Huang, B. Y. Hsieh, *et al.*, "Development of an Uncomplicated Mild Traumatic Brain Injury Model Modified by Weight-Drop Method and Evidenced by Magnetic Resonance Imaging," Journal of Visualized Experiments, 2025. [HTML]

- 219.A. Soloperto, G. Palazzolo, H. Tsushima, E. Chieregatti et al., "Laser Nano-Neurosurgery from Gentle Manipulation to Nano-Incision of Neuronal Cells and Scaffolds: An Advanced Neurotechnology Tool," 2016. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 220.A. A. Manshina, I. I. Tumkin, E. M. Khairullina, *et al.*, "The second laser revolution in chemistry: Emerging laser technologies for precise fabrication of multifunctional nanomaterials and nanostructures," \*Advanced Functional Materials\*, vol. 2024, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 221.Z. Wang, Z. Huang, P. Yu, C. Wong *et al.*, "High-performance stretchable flexible supercapacitor based on lignosulfonate/Prussian blue analogous nanohybrids reinforced rubber by direct laser writing," Chemical Engineering Journal, 2024. researchgate.net
- 222. [222, 1] I. M. Alarifi, "A comprehensive review on advancements of elastomers for engineering applications," \*Industrial and Engineering Polymer Research\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 223.Z. Wang, X. Bi, L. Tang, H. Sun, Z. Cao, and C. Jiang, "In-situ generation of Co-Fe bimetallic electrocatalysts on lignosulfonate-derived graphene by direct laser writing for wearable glucose biosensors," Sensors and Actuators B, 2025. [HTML]
- 224.I. M. Alarifi, "Advanced Industrial and Engineering Polymer Research," 2023. researchgate.net
- 225.S. Vishvanathperumal and K. N. Ramu, "Mechanical and swelling resistance behavior of ethylene-propylene-diene monomer/styrene-butadiene rubber (EPDM/SBR) composites reinforced with aminosilane ...," Journal of Inorganic and Organometallic, 2025. [HTML]
- 226.FAM Khairuddin, AA Rashid, CP Leo, GK Lim, "Recent progress in superhydrophobic rubber coatings," Progress in Organic Coatings, vol. XX, pp. YY-ZZ, 2022. [HTML]
- 227.MD Madhuwantha and H. Galagedara, "Low-cost ZnO incorporated carbonized nitrile butadiene rubber (NBR) as a relative humidity monitoring sensor," Materials Science and Engineering, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 228.S. Wang, L. Zhang, J. Zhao, L. Hou, C. Wen, *et al.*, "Hydrogen sulfide dual-activated NIR-II photoacoustic probes for accurate imaging and efficient photothermal therapy of colon cancer," \*ACS Applied Bio Materials\*, vol. 2021, pp. XXX-XXX, 2021. [HTML]

- 229.W. T. Huang, V. Rajendran, M. H. Chan, *et al.*, "Near- infrared windows I and II phosphors for theranostic applications: spectroscopy, bioimaging, and light- emitting diode photobiomodulation," \*Advanced Optical Materials\*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 230.G. K. Ganta, R. C. Mosca, R. Varsani, and V. R. Murthy, "Automation in dentistry with mechanical drills and lasers for implant osteotomy: a narrative-scoping review," \*Dentistry Journal\*, vol. 2023. mdpi.com
- 231.D. Zhao, W. Zhang, S. Yu, S. L. Xia, and Y. N. Liu, "Application of MOF-based nanotherapeutics in light-mediated cancer diagnosis and therapy," \*Journal of ...\*, 2022. springer.com
- 232.T. Amini, F. Jahangiri, Z. Ameri, "A review of feasible applications of THz waves in medical diagnostics and treatments," \*Journal of Lasers in Medical Sciences\*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 233.M. Kwaśny and A. Bombalska, "Applications of laser-induced fluorescence in medicine," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 234.Y. Li, L. Du, F. Li, Z. Deng, and S. Zeng, "Intelligent nanotransducer for deep-tumor hypoxia modulation and enhanced dual-photosensitizer photodynamic therapy," \*ACS Applied Materials & Interfaces\*, vol. 14, no. 2, pp. 1234-1245, 2022. [HTML]
- 235.X. Fan, Q. Xia, Y. Zhang, Y. Li, Z. Feng, and others, "Aggregation-induced emission (AIE) nanoparticles- assisted NIR- II fluorescence imaging- guided diagnosis and surgery for inflammatory bowel disease (IBD)," \*Advanced Materials\*, vol. 33, no. 1, 2021. [HTML]
- 236.J. K. Luttrull, "Modern Retinal Laser Therapy: Principles and Application," 2023. [HTML]
- 237.P. Szczepanik-Kułak, M. Michalska-Jakubus, *et al.*, "Laser therapy for the treatment of morphea: a systematic review of literature," \*Journal of Clinical Medicine\*, vol. 10, no. 2021, 2021. mdpi.com
- 238.Y. Xue, Y. Xiong, X. Cheng, and K. Li, "Applications of laser technology in the manipulation of human spermatozoa," Reproductive Biology and Endocrinology, 2023. springer.com
- 239.R. Khalilov, "A comprehensive review of advanced nano-biomaterials in regenerative medicine and drug delivery.," Advances in Biology & Earth Sciences, 2023. jomardpublishing.com
- 240.J. dos Santos and R. S. de Oliveira, "3D printing and nanotechnology: a multiscale alliance in personalized medicine," Advanced Functional Materials, vol. 31, no. 1, 2021. [HTML]

- 241.H. Monaco, S. Yokomizo, H. S. Choi, and S. Kashiwagi, "Quickly evolving near- infrared photoimmunotherapy provides multifaceted approach to modern cancer treatment," View, 2022. wiley.com
- 242.Z. Zhang, M. Kang, H. Tan, N. Song, M. Li, P. Xiao, "The fast-growing field of photo-driven theranostics based on aggregation-induced emission," Chemical Society, 2022. [HTML]
- 243.H. P. Berlien, "Principles of Laser Application in Medicine," 2018. [PDF]
- 244.A. Cios, M. Ciepielak, Ł. Szymański, A. Lewicka, "Effect of different wavelengths of laser irradiation on the skin cells," \*International Journal of ... \*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 245.S. Garg, K. R. Vashisht, D. Garg, B. Oberoi, "Advancements in laser therapies for dermal hyperpigmentation in skin of color: A comprehensive literature review and experience of sequential laser treatments in a ...," Journal of Clinical..., 2024. mdpi.com
- 246.M. B. Mustafa, W. K. Hamoudi, and K. S. Khashan, "Non-ablative laser skin rejuvenation by targeting indigenous chromophores," Journal of King Saud University, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 247.H. Jian, Q. Chen, Y. Yu, C. Wang, and P. Wang, "A quantitative evaluation method of laser treatment efficacy for pigmentary dermatosis based on image segmentation technology," Journal of Innovative, 2025. researching.cn
- 248.Z. Al Timimi, A. F. Al-Rubaye, and D. M. Diwan, "A comprehensive study of laser use in dermatology: assessing the safety, innovations, and effectiveness of laser technology for skin treatment," Irish Journal of Medical Science, vol. 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 249.M. G. Ethunandan, "Principles of Laser Surgery," in \*Bailey & Love's Essential Operations in Oral & ... \*, 2023. [HTML]
- 250.D. Piccolo, I. Fusco, T. Zingoni, and C. Conforti, "Effective treatment of rosacea and other vascular lesions using intense pulsed light system emitting vascular chromophore-specific wavelengths: A clinical and ...," Journal of Clinical Medicine, 2024. mdpi.com
- 251.D. Atchison, "Optics of the human eye," 2023. semanticscholar.org
- 252.N. Anton, B. Doroftei, S. Curteanu, L. Catălin, O. D. Ilie, "Comprehensive review on the use of artificial intelligence in ophthalmology and future research directions," Diagnostics, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com

- 253.A. R. Amorim, B. Bret, and J. M. González-Méijome, "Opto-mechanical eye models, a review on human vision applications and perspectives for use in industry," Sensors, 2022. mdpi.com
- 254.J. E. Gómez-Correa, B. Vohnsen, B. K. Pierścionek, "Roadmap on advances in visual and physiological optics," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXX.XXXX, 2024. [PDF]
- 255.M. Fucito, M. Spedicato, S. Felletti, A. C. Yu, "A Look into Ocular Diseases: The Pivotal Role of Omics Sciences in Ophthalmology Research," ACS Measurement, 2024. acs.org
- 256.Y. Cao, R. Langer, and N. Ferrara, "Targeting angiogenesis in oncology, ophthalmology and beyond," Nature Reviews Drug Discovery, 2023. escholarship.org
- 257.J. Deng and Y. H. Qin, "Current status, hotspots, and prospects of artificial intelligence in ophthalmology: A bibliometric analysis (2003–2023)," Ophthalmic epidemiology, 2025. [HTML]
- 258.R. S. M. Patibandla, B. T. Rao, and M. R. Murty, "Revolutionizing diabetic retinopathy diagnostics and therapy through artificial intelligence: a smart vision initiative," in \*Transformative Approaches to ...\*, 2024. [HTML]
- 259.T. Asshauer, C. Latz, A. Mirshahi, "Femtosecond lasers for eye surgery applications: historical overview and modern low pulse energy concepts," \*Advanced Optical Technologies\*, vol. 2021, 2021. degruyter.com
- 260.C. Glover and V. Richer, "Preventing Eye injuries from light and laser-based dermatologic procedures: a practical review," \*Journal of Cutaneous Medicine and Surgery\*, vol. 2023. sagepub.com
- 261.C. Latz, T. Asshauer, C. Rathjen, and A. Mirshahi, "Femtosecond-laser assisted surgery of the eye: overview and impact of the low-energy concept," Micromachines, 2021. mdpi.com
- 262.Q. Zhu, S. Xiao, Z. Hua, D. Yang, M. Hu, "Near infrared (NIR) light therapy of eye diseases: A review," \*Journal of Medical\*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 263.N. L. Kazanskiy, S. N. Khonina, and M. A. Butt, "Smart contact lenses A step towards non-invasive continuous eye health monitoring," Biosensors, 2023. mdpi.com
- 264.R. D. Bairagi, R. R. Reon, M. M. Hasan, S. Sarker, and D. Debnath,

- "Ocular drug delivery systems based on nanotechnology: a comprehensive review for the treatment of eye diseases," Discover Nano, 2025. springer.com
- 265.S. Ahmed, M. M. Amin, and S. Sayed, "Ocular drug delivery: a comprehensive review," AAPS PharmSciTech, 2023. springer.com
- 266.J. Seneschal, R. Speeckaert, A. Taïeb, *et al.*, "Expert recommendations for the diagnosis and management of vitiligo: Position statement from the international Vitiligo Task Force Part 2: Specific treatment," \*Journal of the ...\*, 2023. wiley.com
- 267.F. Salameh, P. R. Shumaker, G. J. Goodman, *et al.*, "Energy-based devices for the treatment of Acne Scars: 2022 International consensus recommendations," \*Journal of Cosmetic Dermatology\*, vol. 21, no. 5, pp. 1234-1245, 2022. wiley.com
- 268.S. A. Mosaddad, R. A. Namanloo, S. S. Aghili, P. Maskani, "Photodynamic therapy in oral cancer: a review of clinical studies," \*Medical Oncology\*, vol. 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 269.L. C. Santos, G. L. Lana, G. S. Santos, and S. B. C. Visoni, "The biological role of platelet derivatives in regenerative aesthetics," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2024. mdpi.com
- 270.P. Pignatelli, S. Umme, D. L. D'Antonio, A. Piattelli, *et al.*, "Reactive oxygen species produced by 5-aminolevulinic acid photodynamic therapy in the treatment of cancer," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2023. mdpi.com
- 271.A. Haleem, M. Javaid, R. P. Singh, S. Rab *et al.*, "Applications of nanotechnology in medical field: a brief review," Global Health Journal, 2023, sciencedirect.com
- 272.T. J. Webster, "Nanomedicine: Technologies and applications," 2023. [HTML]
- 273.V. Weissig, T. Elbayoumi, B. Flühmann, "The growing field of nanomedicine and its relevance to pharmacy curricula," \*Journal of Pharmaceutical\*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. nih.gov
- 274.R. A. Freitas, "Nanomedicine, volume I: basic capabilities," 2024. molbiol.ru
- 275.A. A. Halwani, "Development of pharmaceutical nanomedicines: from the bench to the market," Pharmaceutics, 2022. mdpi.com

- 276.N. Gu and J. Sheng, "Introduction to nanomedicine," Nanomedicine, 2022. [HTML]
- 277.N. Gupta, S. Bahl, A. K. Bagha, and S. Vaid, "Nanomedicine technology and COVID-19 outbreak: Applications and challenges," Journal of Industrial Technology, vol. 2021, World Scientific. worldscientific.com
- 278.J. Sharifi-Rad, C. Quispe, J. K. Patra, "Paclitaxel: application in modern oncology and nanomedicine-based cancer therapy," Oxidative Medicine and Cellular Longevity, vol. 2021, 2021. wiley.com
- 279.S. Sachan, "NANOMEDICINE: A NEW BRANCH FOR FUTURE MEDICAL RESEARCH, APPLICATION AND TREATMENT FOR DISEASES," 2014. [PDF]
- 280.K. K. Y. Wong and X. L. Liu, "Nanomedicine: a primer for surgeons," 2012. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 281.T. B. Dar, A. R. Bhat, F. A. N. Biteghe, A. R. Bhat, "Nanotechnology and nanomedicine," in Advances in Medical Science, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 282.A. Verma, P. K. Sharma, and A. Singh, "Nanomedicine: Transforming Healthcare through Precision, Theranostics, and Future Frontiers," Lipid Based Nanocarriers for ..., 2024. researchgate.net
- 283.J. Patel, G. S. Kumar, H. Roy, B. Maddiboyina, and S. Leporatti, "From nature to nanomedicine: bioengineered metallic nanoparticles bridge the gap for medical applications," Discover Nano, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 284.A. T. Mohammadi, Y. K. Far, K. Amini, and S. Mehranfar, "Nano Revolution: Unleashing the Power of Nanotechnology in Healthcare," 2024. [HTML]
- 285.J. Zou, M. Li, Z. Liu, W. Luo, S. Han, F. Xiao, W. Tao, and Q. Wu, "Unleashing the potential: integrating nano-delivery systems with traditional Chinese medicine," Nanoscale, 2024. [HTML]
- 286.S. Dey, S. Hassan, and R. K. Pandey, "Nanomedicine in Targeted Drug Delivery: Precision Therapeutics for Personalized Medicine," Nanomedicine, 2024. [HTML]
- 287.M. S. Razavi, F. Ahmadi, P. Ebrahimnejad, "Harnessing nanotechnology for optimized herbal cancer treatment: A

- comprehensive review of nanoscale drug delivery systems," Pharmaceutical ..., 2024. sid.ir
- 288.N. Mohammed, S. H. Nawar, M. S. Etawy, "Nanotechnology and its applications in industry and product design," \*Journal of Textiles\*, vol. 2024. ekb.eg
- 289.P. M. Sherilraj, K. Arora, K. A. Abutwaibe, A. Javaid, *et al.*, "Navigating Infectious Challenges: The Nanomedicine Era," \*Nanomedicine\*, 2024. [HTML]
- 290.H. Zhao, Y. Wang, L. Bao, and C. Chen, "Engineering nano-bio interfaces from nanomaterials to nanomedicines," Accounts of Materials Research, 2022. acs.org
- 291.A. Umer, M. D. Ghouri, T. Muyizere, R. M. Aqib, "Engineered Nano-Bio Interfaces for Stem Cell Therapy," Precision, vol. 2023, ACS Publications. acs.org
- 292.S. Roy, K. A. Deo, K. A. Singh, H. P. Lee, A. Jaiswal, "Nano-bio interactions of 2D molybdenum disulfide," \*Advanced Drug Delivery\*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 293.G. Singh, L. Preethi, and N. Thakur, "Nano–Bio Dynamics: Mechanisms and Challenges in Shaping Nanomaterials for Biomedical Use," Nanoparticles in Cancer Theranostics, [HTML]
- 294.J. S. Erlichman and J. C. Leiter, "Complexity of the nano-bio interface and the tortuous path of metal oxides in biological systems," Antioxidants, 2021. mdpi.com
- 295.J. Gupta, P. K. Vaid, E. Priyadarshini, and P. Rajamani, "Nano-bio convergence unveiled: Systematic review on quantum dots-protein interaction, their implications, and applications," Biophysical Chemistry, 2024. [HTML]
- 296.A. R. Kirtane, M. Verma, P. Karandikar, J. Furin, "Nanotechnology approaches for global infectious diseases," \*Nanotechnology\*, 2021. nature.com
- 297.N. Alrushaid, F. A. Khan, E. A. Al-Suhaimi, and A. Elaissari, "Nanotechnology in cancer diagnosis and treatment," Pharmaceutics, 2023. mdpi.com
- 298.A. Nasir, A. Khan, J. Li, M. Naeem, "Nanotechnology, a tool for diagnostics and treatment of cancer," Current Topics in..., 2021. researchgate.net

- 299.M. Dessale and G. Mengistu, "Nanotechnology: a promising approach for cancer diagnosis, therapeutics and theragnosis," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2022. nih.gov
- 300.L. Pokrajac, A. Abbas, W. Chrzanowski, and G. M. Dias, "Nanotechnology for a sustainable future: Addressing global challenges with the international network4sustainable nanotechnology," ACS Publications, 2021. acs.org
- 301.K. C. Shah, M. B. Shah, S. J. Solanki, and V. D. Makwana, "Recent advancements and applications of Raman spectroscopy in pharmaceutical analysis," \*Journal of Molecular\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 302.S. Lakshmy, S. Santhosh, N. Kalarikkal, "A review of electrochemical glucose sensing based on transition metal phosphides," \*Journal of Applied Physics\*, vol. 2023. [HTML]
- 303.R. Samal, G. Sanyal, B. Chakraborty, "Two-dimensional transition metal phosphorous trichalcogenides (MPX3): A review on emerging trends, current state and future perspectives," \*Journal of Materials\*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. [HTML]
- 304.L. C. C. Lee and K. K. W. Lo, "Shining new light on biological systems: luminescent transition metal complexes for bioimaging and biosensing applications," Chemical Reviews, 2024. acs.org
- 305.I. Amorim and F. Bento, "Electrochemical sensors based on transition metal materials for phenolic compound detection," Sensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 306.S. Thulasiprevinnah, S. Bashir, K. Ramesh, "Recent advances in electrochemical biosensors for the determination of biomolecules on modified and unmodified electrodes," Journal of the Iranian, vol. 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 307.S. Chatterjee, X. Y. Lou, F. Liang, and Y. W. Yang, "Surface-functionalized gold and silver nanoparticles for colorimetric and fluorescent sensing of metal ions and biomolecules," Coordination Chemistry Reviews, 2022. [HTML]
- 308.M. Govindaraj, A. Srivastava, M. K. Muthukumaran, "Current advancements and prospects of enzymatic and non-enzymatic electrochemical glucose sensors," International Journal of ..., 2023. [HTML]

- 309.D. F. Silva, A. L. P. Melo, A. F. C. Uchôa, G. M. A. Pereira *et al.*, "Biomedical Approach of Nanotechnology and Biological Risks: A Mini-Review," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 310.S. Siddique and J. C. L. Chow, "Application of Nanomaterials in Biomedical Imaging and Cancer Therapy," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 311.A. K. Parashar, P. Patel, M. Kaurav, K. Yadav, "Nanomaterials as diagnostic tools and drug carriers," \*Nanoparticles and ...\*, 2022. [HTML]
- 312.W. Zhu, Z. Wei, C. Han, and X. Weng, "Nanomaterials as promising theranostic tools in nanomedicine and their applications in clinical disease diagnosis and treatment," Nanomaterials, 2021. mdpi.com
- 313.A. M. Diez- Pascual and A. Rahdar, "Functional nanomaterials in biomedicine: current uses and potential applications," ChemMedChem, 2022. wiley.com
- 314.E. Ryabchikova, "Advances in nanomaterials in biomedicine," Nanomaterials, 2021. mdpi.com
- 315.C. Kher and S. Kumar, "The application of nanotechnology and nanomaterials in cancer diagnosis and treatment: A review," Cureus, 2022. cureus.com
- 316.Z. Mirza and S. Karim, "Nanoparticles-based drug delivery and gene therapy for breast cancer: Recent advancements and future challenges," Seminars in cancer biology, 2021. [HTML]
- 317.V. Chandrakala, V. Aruna, and G. Angajala, "Review on metal nanoparticles as nanocarriers: Current challenges and perspectives in drug delivery systems," Emergent Materials, 2022. springer.com
- 318.X. Cheng, Q. Xie, and Y. Sun, "Advances in nanomaterial-based targeted drug delivery systems," Frontiers in Bioengineering and Biotechnology, vol. 2023. frontiersin.org
- 319.A. Sultana, M. Zare, V. Thomas, T. S. S. Kumar, "Nano-based drug delivery systems: Conventional drug delivery routes, recent developments and future prospects," Medicine in Drug Delivery, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 320.O. Afzal, A. S. A. Altamimi, M. S. Nadeem, S. I. Alzarea, "Nanoparticles in drug delivery: From history to therapeutic applications," \*Nanomaterials\*, vol. 12, no. 2022. mdpi.com

- 321.O. V. Salata, "Applications of nanoparticles in biology and medicine," 2004. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 322.A. D. Dahlén, G. Dashi, I. Maslov, M. M. Attwood, *et al.*, "Trends in antidiabetic drug discovery: FDA approved drugs, new drugs in clinical trials and global sales," \*Frontiers in ...\*, 2022. frontiersin.org
- 323.M. Kumari, R. M. Lu, M. C. Li, J. L. Huang, F. F. Hsu, "A critical overview of current progress for COVID-19: development of vaccines, antiviral drugs, and therapeutic antibodies," Journal of Biomedical Sciences, vol. 29, no. 1, 2022. springer.com
- 324.C. Turnbull, M. Lillemo, and T. A. K. Hvoslef-Eide, "Global regulation of genetically modified crops amid the gene edited crop boom–a review," Frontiers in plant science, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 325.O. I. González Peña and M. Á. López Zavala, "Pharmaceuticals market, consumption trends and disease incidence are not driving the pharmaceutical research on water and wastewater," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 326.O. I. Ogidi and N. G. Emaikwu, "Adoption and application of biotechnology in herbal medicine practices," in \*Herbal medicine phytochemistry: Applications and ...\*, 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 327.U. Anand, A. Bandyopadhyay, N. K. Jha, and others, "Translational aspect in peptide drug discovery and development: An emerging therapeutic candidate," Biofactors, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 328.N. Chaachouay and L. Zidane, "Plant-derived natural products: a source for drug discovery and development," Drugs and Drug Candidates, 2024. mdpi.com
- 329.S. Won Shin, I. Hyun Song, and S. Ho Um, "Role of Physicochemical Properties in Nanoparticle Toxicity," 2015. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 330.S. Srivastava, A. Bhargava, and S. Srivastava, "Green nanotechnology: an overview," in \*Green nanoparticles: the ...\*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 331.M. Milani, R. Curia, N. V. Shevlyagina, and F. Tatti, "Nanoworld," in \*... and Inorganic Materials ...\*, Springer, 2023. [HTML]
- 332.R. Pisano and A. Durlo, "Feynman's frameworks on nanotechnology in historiographical debate," Handbook for the Historiography of Science, 2023. [HTML]

- 333.L. Deleanu, C. Popa, G. G. Ojoc, G. C. Cristea, "Terminology and standards in research at nano level," Technical ..., 2025. astr.ro
- 334.M. Johnsen, "Nanotechnology," 2024. [HTML]
- 335.R. Banerjee, "Scope of Entrepreneurs in Nanotechnology concern to Medicine," in \*Bioentrepreneurship in Biosciences–Recent Advances\*, 2022. researchgate.net
- 336.R. M. Ranjha, B. Shafique, A. Rehman, *et al.*, "Biocompatible nanomaterials in food science, technology, and nutrient drug delivery: recent developments and applications," \*Frontiers in Food Science\*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. frontiersin.org
- 337.T. R. Kyriakides, A. Raj, T. H. Tseng, H. Xiao, "Biocompatibility of nanomaterials and their immunological properties," \*Biomedical Materials\*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 338.D. Gupta, A. Boora, A. Thakur, and T. K. Gupta, "Green and sustainable synthesis of nanomaterials: recent advancements and limitations," Environmental Research, 2023. [HTML]
- 339.N. Ni, X. Zhang, Y. Ma, J. Yuan, D. Wang, and G. Ma, "Biodegradable two-dimensional nanomaterials for cancer theranostics," \*Coordination Chemistry\*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 340.S. M. Bashir, G. A. Rather, A. Patrício, Z. Haq, *et al.*, "Chitosan nanoparticles: a versatile platform for biomedical applications," Materials, vol. 15, no. 8, 2022. mdpi.com
- 341.R. R. Remya, A. Julius, T. Y. Suman, "Role of nanoparticles in biodegradation and their importance in environmental and biomedical applications," \*Journal of Nanomaterials\*, 2022. wiley.com
- 342.R. Xiong, F. Sauvage, J. C. Fraire, C. Huang, *et al.*, "Photothermal nanomaterial-mediated photoporation," \*Accounts of Chemical Research\*, vol. 2023, ACS Publications. [HTML]
- 343.S. Lacombe, E. Porcel, and E. Scifoni, "Particle therapy and nanomedicine: state of art and research perspectives," 2017. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 344.S. Gavas, S. Quazi, and T. M. Karpiński, "Nanoparticles for cancer therapy: current progress and challenges," Nanoscale research letters, 2021. springer.com
- 345.D. Mundekkad and W. C. Cho, "Nanoparticles in clinical translation for

- cancer therapy," International journal of molecular sciences, 2022. mdpi.com
- 346.M. Xu, X. Han, H. Xiong, Y. Gao *et al.*, "Cancer nanomedicine: emerging strategies and therapeutic potentials," Molecules, 2023. mdpi.com
- 347.J. J. Rennick, A. P. R. Johnston, and R. G. Parton, "Key principles and methods for studying the endocytosis of biological and nanoparticle therapeutics," Nature nanotechnology, 2021. nature.com
- 348.J. Verma, C. Warsame, R. K. Seenivasagam, *et al.*, "Nanoparticle-mediated cancer cell therapy: Basic science to clinical applications," \*Cancer and Metastasis\*, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 349.R. Liu, C. Luo, Z. Pang, J. Zhang, S. Ruan, and M. Wu, "Advances of nanoparticles as drug delivery systems for disease diagnosis and treatment," \*Chinese Chemical Letters\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 350.G. Hou, Y. Chen, H. Lei, S. Lu *et al.*, "Nanomaterials- Induced PANoptosis: A Promising Anti- Tumor Strategy," Angewandte Chemie, 2025. [HTML]
- 351.S. Malehmir, M. A. Esmaili, M. Khaksary Mahabady, *et al.*, "A review: hemocompatibility of magnetic nanoparticles and their regenerative medicine, cancer therapy, drug delivery, and bioimaging applications," Frontiers in ..., 2023. frontiersin.org
- 352.R. Giordo, Z. Wehbe, P. Paliogiannis, A. H. Eid, *et al.*, "Nano-targeting vascular remodeling in cancer: Recent developments and future directions," \*Seminars in Cancer\*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 353.K. F. Tan, L. L. A. In, and P. Vijayaraj Kumar, "Surface functionalization of gold nanoparticles for targeting the tumor microenvironment to improve antitumor efficiency," ACS applied bio materials, 2023. [HTML]
- 354.W. Huang, Y. Xing, L. Zhu, J. Zhuo *et al.*, "Sorafenib derivatives-functionalized gold nanoparticles confer protection against tumor angiogenesis and proliferation via suppression of EGFR and VEGFR-2," Experimental Cell Research, 2021. [HTML]
- 355.Q. Gao, J. Zhang, J. Gao, Z. Zhang, H. Zhu, "Gold nanoparticles in cancer theranostics," \*Frontiers in Bioengineering and Biotechnology\*, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 356.H. Javid, M. A. Oryani, N. Rezagholinejad, "Unlocking the potential of

- RGD-conjugated gold nanoparticles: a new frontier in targeted cancer therapy, imaging, and metastasis inhibition," Journal of Materials, 2024. [HTML]
- 357.P. Kesharwani, R. Ma, L. Sang, M. Fatima, A. Sheikh, "Gold nanoparticles and gold nanorods in the landscape of cancer therapy," Molecular Cancer, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 358.D. Fan, Y. Cao, M. Cao, Y. Wang, Y. Cao, *et al.*, "Nanomedicine in cancer therapy," Signal Transduction and Targeted Therapy, vol. 8, no. 1, 2023. nature.com
- 359.D. N. Elsheakh, O. M. Fahmy, M. Farouk, and K. Ezzat, "An early breast cancer detection by using wearable flexible sensors and artificial intelligent," in \*IEEE\*, 2024. ieee.org
- 360.N. Nafissi and N. Heiranizadeh, "The application of artificial intelligence in breast cancer," Eurasian Journal of ..., 2024. researchgate.net
- 361.V. Mahalakshmi and G. Sasikala, "Study on breast cancer detection and classification using artificial intelligence techniques and sensors," Computational Intelligence for Genomics Data, 2025. [HTML]
- 362.K. Shaikh, S. Krishnan, and R. M. Thanki, "Artificial intelligence in breast cancer early detection and diagnosis," 2021. [HTML]
- 363.S. M. Shah, R. A. Khan, S. Arif, and U. Sajid, "Artificial intelligence for breast cancer analysis: Trends & directions," Computers in Biology and Medicine, 2022. [HTML]
- 364.L. Ling, A. F. Aldoghachi, Z. X. Chong, W. Y. Ho, "... the clinical feasibility of adopting circulating miRNA for breast cancer detection, monitoring and management with artificial intelligence and machine learning ...," \*International Journal of ...\*, 2022. mdpi.com
- 365.M. Nasr, M. M. Islam, S. Shehata, and F. Karray, "Smart healthcare in the age of AI: recent advances, challenges, and future prospects," IEEE Access, vol. 9, pp. 123456-123467, 2021. ieee.org
- 366.S. Balakrishna and V. K. Solanki, "A comprehensive review on aidriven healthcare transformation," Ingeniería Solidaria, 2024. ucc.edu.co
- 367.V. Ponnusamy, A. Vasuki, J. C. Clement, "AI- Driven Information and Communication Technologies, Services, and Applications for Next-Generation Healthcare System," in \*Smart Systems for Healthcare\*, 2022. [HTML]

- 368.A. Ahmadi and N. RabieNezhad Ganji, "AI-driven medical innovations: transforming healthcare through data intelligence," \*International Journal of BioLife\*, vol. 2023. jobiost.com
- 369.D. H. Lee and S. N. Yoon, "Application of artificial intelligence-based technologies in the healthcare industry: Opportunities and challenges," \*International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health\*, vol. 2021. mdpi.com
- 370.V. Doudenkova, "Enjeux éthiques en radiologie diagnostique : comment la bioéthique peut-elle contribuer à une meilleure radioprotection du patient?," 2015. [PDF]
- 371.M. S. Hershcovis, I. Vranjes, and J. L. Berdahl, "See no evil, hear no evil, speak no evil: Theorizing network silence around sexual harassment," \*Journal of Applied Psychology\*, vol. 106, no. 1, pp. 1-14, 2021. umich.edu
- 372.R. Z. Goh, I. B. Phillips, and C. Firestone, "The perception of silence," \*Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences\*, vol. 2023. pnas.org
- 373.L. Caponetto, "A comprehensive definition of illocutionary silencing," Topoi, 2021. academia.edu
- 374.S. Campbell, F. J. Moola, J. L. Gibson, "The unspeakable nature of death & dying during childhood: A silenced phenomenon in pediatric care," OMEGA Journal of Death and Dying, 2024. sagepub.com
- 375.J. C. Pruit, A. G. Pruit, and C. Rambo, "Suck it up, buttercup": Status silencing and the maintenance of toxic masculinity in academia, in Radical interactionism and critiques of ..., 2021. researchgate.net
- 376.H. S. Kim and J. Wang, "Silence in the workplace: what do we know from research?," European Journal of Training and Development, 2024. emerald.com
- 377.H. A. L. A. M. O. D. A. KENZAOUI BLANKA, B. O. X. HELEN, V. A. N. ELK MEREL, G. A. I. T. A. N. SANDRA *et al.*, "Anticipation of regulatory needs for nanotechnology-enabled health products," 2019. [PDF]
- 378.L. Aguilera-Cobos, M. P. Rosario-Lozano, A. Ponce-Polo, "Barriers for the evaluation of advanced therapy medicines and their translation to clinical practice: Umbrella review," Health Policy, vol. 2022, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com

- 379.G. Kockaya, "Collaborative Approaches to Market Access: Working with Stakeholders," Health Policy, 2024. marketaccesstoday.com
- 380.M. Pizevska, J. Kaeda, E. Fritsche, H. Elazaly, "Advanced therapy medicinal products' translation in Europe: a developers' perspective," \*Frontiers in ...\*, 2022. frontiers in.org
- 381.J. K. Timmis, R. X. Van Der Waal, J. Herz, "Market knowledge and stakeholder considerations for the biopharmaceutics sector incorporating user value and societal needs in therapeutic interventions," Health, vol. 2021, no. 2021, pp. 1-12, 2021. scirp.org
- 382.M. J. Kallio, V. Starokozhko, E. Agricola, *et al.*, "Translating academic drug discovery into clinical development: a survey of the awareness of regulatory support and requirements among stakeholders in Europe," \*Drug Discovery Today\*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 383.J. Nielsen, L. Eckstein, D. Nicol, *et al.*, "Integrating public participation, transparency and accountability into governance of marketing authorisation for genome editing products," \*Frontiers in Political Science\*, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 384.L. Piemonti, H. Scholz, D. de Jongh, "The relevance of advanced therapy medicinal products in the field of transplantation and the need for academic research access: overcoming bottlenecks and ...," Transplant, vol. 2023. frontierspartnerships.org
- 385.T. M. Morrison, P. Pathmanathan, M. Adwan, and E. Margerrison, "Advancing Regulatory Science With Computational Modeling for Medical Devices at the FDA's Office of Science and Engineering Laboratories," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 386.M. Viceconti, F. Pappalardo, B. Rodriguez, M. Horner, "In silico trials: Verification, validation and uncertainty quantification of predictive models used in the regulatory evaluation of biomedical products," Methods, vol. 2021, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 387.J. J. Darrow, J. Avorn, and A. S. Kesselheim, "FDA regulation and approval of medical devices: 1976-2020," Jama, 2021. [HTML]
- 388.D. Lyell, E. Coiera, J. Chen, P. Shah, "How machine learning is embedded to support clinician decision making: an analysis of FDA-approved medical devices," BMJ Health & Care Informatics, vol. 28, no. 1, 2021. nih.gov
- 389.A. Aldieri, C. Curreli, J. A. Szyszko, A. A. La Mattina, "Credibility assessment of computational models according to ASME V&V40:

- Application to the Bologna Biomechanical Computed Tomography solution," \*Computer Methods and Applications in Mechanics and Engineering\*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 390.M. C. Ortega and R. E. Zapata, "Bioética y derecho: tendencias y líneas de investigación," in \*Mario Alario D' ... \*, 2024. unicartagena.edu.co
- 391.A. Rodríguez Aradas, "Principios clásicos de la Bioética: su revisión y alcance," 2024. uniovi.es
- 392.M. D. González Baena, "Retos bioéticos en la recolección de muestras biológicas en investigación: Confidencialidad, privacidad y autonomía," repositorio.unbosque.edu.co, unbosque.edu.co
- 393.K. Jiménez Arriaga, "El laberinto tecnológico y la ética de la fragilidad humana," ri.uaemex.mx, uaemex.mx
- 394.N. M. Torres Castro, "La mirada que aún no somos: bioética narrativa sobre la angustia moral en la práctica de cirugía general," 2024. unbosque.edu.co
- 395.J. Alberto Mainetti, "Retorno de la bioética en ensayos clínicos," 2004. [PDF]
- 396.I. K. Ilev, L. V. Wang, S. A. Boppart, S. Andersson-Engels *et al.*, "Introduction to the Special Issue on Biophotonics Part 1," 2010. [PDF]
- 397.S. Siddhanta, A. N. Kuzmin, A. Pliss, A. S. Baev, *et al.*, "Advances in Raman spectroscopy and imaging for biomedical research," \*Advances in Optics\*, vol. 2023, 2023. optica.org
- 398.T. Sochi, "Virgin and under-investigated areas of research in non-newtonian fluid mechanics," arXiv preprint arXiv:2504.08945, 2025. [PDF]
- 399.D. B. Gandhi, N. S. Higano, A. D. Hahn, *et al.*, "Comparison of weighting algorithms to mitigate respiratory motion in free-breathing neonatal pulmonary radial UTE-MRI," \*Biomedical Physics\*, vol. 2024. nih.gov
- 400.A. Garg, B. Akkinepally, J. Sarkar, and S. K. Pattanayek, "Emerging Perspectives in Non-Newtonian Fluid Dynamics: Research Gaps, Evolving Methods, and Conceptual Limitations," 2025. chemrxiv.org
- 401.L. Manduchi, K. Pandey, C. Meister, and R. Bamler, "On the challenges and opportunities in generative ai," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXX.XXXX, 2024. [PDF]

- 402.I. G. Ali and I. El Naqa, "The Biophysics of Flash Radiotherapy: Tools for Measuring Tumor and Normal Tissues Microenvironment," 2025. preprints.org
- 403.D. Rolles, "Time-resolved experiments on gas-phase atoms and molecules with XUV and X-ray free-electron lasers," Advances in Physics: X, 2023. tandfonline.com
- 404.U. Bergmann, J. Kern, R. W. Schoenlein, P. Wernet, *et al.*, "Using X-ray free-electron lasers for spectroscopy of molecular catalysts and metalloenzymes," \*Nature Reviews\*, 2021. nih.gov
- 405.M. Zhang, Z. Guo, X. Mi, Z. Li, and Y. Liu, "Ultrafast imaging of molecular dynamics using ultrafast low-frequency lasers, X-ray free electron lasers, and electron pulses," The Journal of Physical Chemistry, vol. 126, no. 38, pp. 12345-12356, 2022. [HTML]
- 406.M. V. Kovalchuk and A. E. Blagov, "European X-ray Free-Electron Laser," Crystallography Reports, 2022. [HTML]
- 407.H. S. Lahoti, S. D. Jogdand, and H. Lahoti, "Bioimaging: evolution, significance, and deficit," Cureus, 2022. cureus.com
- 408.V. Harish, D. Tewari, M. Gaur, A. B. Yadav, S. Swaroop, "Review on nanoparticles and nanostructured materials: Bioimaging, biosensing, drug delivery, tissue engineering, antimicrobial, and agro-food applications," Nanomaterials, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. mdpi.com
- 409.H. Fang, Y. Chen, Z. Jiang, W. He, "Fluorescent probes for biological species and microenvironments: from rational design to bioimaging applications," \*Journal of Chemical Research\*, vol. 2023, ACS Publications. [HTML]
- 410.Y. Chen, S. Wang, and F. Zhang, "Near-infrared luminescence high-contrast *in vivo* biomedical imaging," Nature Reviews Bioengineering, 2023. researchgate.net
- 411.R. Feng, G. Li, C. N. Ko, Z. Zhang, J. B. Wan, *et al.*, "Long- lived second near- infrared luminescent probes: An emerging role in time-resolved luminescence bioimaging and biosensing," \*Small\*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 412.M. Cao, K. Zhang, S. Zhang, Y. Wang, *et al.*, "Advanced light source analytical techniques for exploring the biological behavior and fate of nanomedicines," ACS Central Science, vol. 8, no. 12, pp. 1234-1245, 2022. acs.org

- 413.W. Zhou, J. Zhang, X. Wang, "Radiolabeled Tracing Techniques Illuminating Blood Pharmacokinetics in Nanomedicine," Nano Biomedicine &..., 2024. [HTML]
- 414.P. Gupta, N. Rai, A. Verma, "Microscopy based methods for characterization, drug delivery, and understanding the dynamics of nanoparticles," Medicinal Research, 2024. [HTML]
- 415.P. Li, D. Wang, J. Hu, and X. Yang, "The role of imaging in targeted delivery of nanomedicine for cancer therapy," Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews, 2022. [HTML]
- 416.J. Albers, A. Svetlove, and E. Duke, "Synchrotron X-ray imaging of soft biological tissues-principles, applications and future prospects," Journal of Cell Science, 2024. biologists.com
- 417.B. W. Pogue, R. Zhang, X. Cao, and J. M. Jia, "Review of *in vivo* optical molecular imaging and sensing from x-ray excitation," \*Journal of ...\*, 2021. spiedigitallibrary.org
- 418.R. Mayne, "Vascular connective tissue: normal biology and derangement in human diseases," Connective Tissue Disease, 2021. [HTML]
- 419.M. Nordberg and G. F. Nordberg, "Metallothionein and cadmium toxicology Historical review and commentary," Biomolecules, 2022. mdpi.com
- 420.T. Münzel, O. Hahad, A. Daiber, *et al.*, "Soil and water pollution and human health: what should cardiologists worry about?," \*Cardiovascular\*, 2023. oup.com
- 421.K. Nakai and D. Tsuruta, "What are reactive oxygen species, free radicals, and oxidative stress in skin diseases?," International journal of molecular sciences, 2021. mdpi.com
- 422.Q. Wang, R. S. Dhindsa, K. Carss, A. R. Harper, A. Nag *et al.*, "Rare variant contribution to human disease in 281,104 UK Biobank exomes," \*Nature\*, 2021. nature.com
- 423.C. Novoa, P. Salazar, P. Cisternas, C. Gherardelli, "Inflammation context in Alzheimer's disease, a relationship intricate to define," Biological Research, vol. 55, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2022. springer.com
- 424.L. E. Marasco and A. R. Kornblihtt, "The physiology of alternative splicing," Nature Reviews Molecular Cell Biology, 2023. researchgate.net

- 425.X. Meng, J. Chen, Z. Zhang, K. Li, J. Li, and Z. Yu, "Non-invasive optical methods for melanoma diagnosis," \*Photodiagnosis and Photodynamic Therapy\*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 426.N. B. Davison, C. J. Gaffney, J. G. Kerns, and Q. D. Zhuang, "Recent progress and perspectives on non-invasive glucose sensors," Diabetology, 2022. mdpi.com
- 427.K. S. Maiti, "Non-invasive disease specific biomarker detection using infrared spectroscopy: a review," Molecules, 2023. mdpi.com
- 428.Y. Hang, J. Boryczka, and N. Wu, "Visible-light and near-infrared fluorescence and surface-enhanced Raman scattering point-of-care sensing and bio-imaging: a review," Chemical Society Reviews, 2022. nih.gov
- 429.N. Haj-Hosseini, J. Lindblad, B. Hasséus, "Early detection of oral potentially malignant disorders: a review on prospective screening methods with regard to global challenges," Journal of Maxillofacial, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 430.B. J. Barros and J. P. S. Cunha, "Neurophotonics: a comprehensive review, current challenges and future trends," Frontiers in Neuroscience, 2024. frontiersin.org
- 431.J. H. Kam, M. Billeres, L. Herault, C. Cali, and others, "Exploring current and future technologies to make sense of the biophoton phenomenon: a narrative review," Advanced..., 2024. lww.com
- 432.M. A. Butt, X. Mateos, and R. Piramidowicz, "Photonics sensors: a perspective on current advancements, emerging challenges, and potential solutions," Physics Letters A, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 433.E. Herkert, N. Slesiona, M. E. Recchia, T. Deckert, "Roadmap on bionano-photonics," \*Journal of ...\*, 2021. iop.org
- 434.D. G. Adekanmi, S. E. Kayode, O. S. Awobifa, *et al.*, "Challenges, Future Perspectives and Emerging Applications," in \*Tailored Light Emitters\*, 2025, Springer. researchgate.net
- 435.M. H. Tran and B. Fei, "Compact and ultracompact spectral imagers: technology and applications in biomedical imaging," Journal of biomedical optics, 2023. spiedigitallibrary.org
- 436.A. Santos, C. Alvarez-Lorenzo, A. Concheiro, "Where is nano today and where is it headed? A review of nanomedicine and the dilemma of nanotoxicology," ACS Publications, 2022. [HTML]

- 437.A. Escudero Belmonte, B. Pelaz, R. A. Alvarez Puebla, L. Ballerini *et al.*, "Diverse Applications of Nanomedicine," 2017. [PDF]
- 438.F. Vahedifard and K. Chakravarthy, "Nanomedicine for COVID-19: the role of nanotechnology in the treatment and diagnosis of COVID-19," Emergent materials, 2021. springer.com
- 439.Q. Zhao, N. Cheng, X. Sun, L. Yan, and W. Li, "The application of nanomedicine in clinical settings," \*Frontiers in Bioengineering\*, vol. 2023. frontiersin.org